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“Zhao Ye Bai" ( White Night) , by Han Gan, Tang Dynasty.

The Tang Dynasty represented an expansionist period in Chinese history.

Horses were instrumental in the imperial army's victories and became the subject 

of many Tang paintings.  Han Gan was a well known artist of this genre, and 

“Zhao Ye Bai", a horse whose white mane, coat, and tail glowed in the darkness 

of night, was one of his best work.
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Group Structure

Advanced Semiconductor
Engineering, Inc.
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(Chung-Li ) Inc.

ASE Electronics
(Malaysia) Sdn.Bhd.
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ASE 
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Universal Scientific
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ASE Korea Inc.

ASE Test Limited
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6.7 %

80.4 %
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Letter to Shareholders

Richard H.P. Chang
Vice-Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

Jason C.S. Chang
Chairman
Chief Operating Officer

Enhancing the Value - Chain

2000 was a year of consolidation for ASE, after being on an aggressive expansion mode the year before.  By strengthening 

our global presence and integrating group resources to ensure effective utilization of resources, we successfully executed our 

growth strategies and integration plans and thus further consolidated our position in the semiconductor industry. 

  

From broadening the depth and breadth of technological capabilities to the successful integration of our acquired entities; to 

the unveiling of advanced technologies; widening our geographical coverage to span the Silicon Valley in the US with the ISE 

Labs acquisition to the Motorola facility in Korea and entrenching our position in Taiwan with a new facility in Chung-Li and 

expanding our Kaoshiung plant; finally, to diversifying our customer and product mix to ensure we are well -hedged for any 

downturn. 

The highlight of 2000 was the listing of ASE Inc. on the New York Stock Exchange during 

the 3rd quarter of 2000.  During the listing, it was also the time when the industry started 

to see signs of a downturn and just as quickly as players in the industry celebrated an 

upturn.  Faced with a softening in demand and inventory correction-spreading from the 

PC to the communications applications and wireless sectors-companies started to put 

a halt on their capacity expansion plans, inventories were piling up and it seemed we had 

celebrated an upturn too soon.  Nonetheless, we were able to overcome  these difficulties 

and ASE was successfully listed on the NYSE.  Our listing was  a strategic move to ensure 

we gained added recognition from  institutional investors globally, and to gain access to 

the largest capital market in the world.  The listing is not only a funding exercise, it also 

elevates ASE to another competitive platform.

In what can only be described as a very challenging and ever-changing environment, 

ASE's financial figures for 2000 were nothing short of extraordinary. Revenues totaled a 

record NT$50,894 million, and our gross margin improved to 30%, a historical high.  

The numbers we are able to achieve are due in no small part to the dedicated group of 

people we have at ASE. Through the years, we have created and bonded together a unique 

blend of people who have produced in the past 16 consecutive years stellar results and a 

unique brand of commitment that you only find here. For us at ASE, this was not just 

another year of strong growth especially in the midst of growing competition, it was a year 

when we were able to outshine the industry and our peers.

Serving as a natural hedge was our well -balanced exposure in the 3Cs areas - 

communications, computers, and consumer applications. We continue to be well positioned 

in the PC related markets but have successfully executed our strategy to diversify into other 

areas.  Our computing-related revenues have been reduced from 45% in 1999 to 30% in 

2000. Our revenues are now evenly-balanced between the 3Cs, as we believe only through 

such broad-based exposure will it allow us to better capitalize on growth opportunities in 

all sectors while reducing concentration risk.
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Perhaps most importantly for our revenues and profitability the fastest growth is expected to take place in substrate-based 

advanced packages, such as BGA, where outsourcing revenues are expected to more than triple; from US2.8 billion dollars in 

1999 to US8.5 billion dollars in 2004, a compound annual growth rate of 25%. We are a market leader in BGA products, 

with a broader and more advanced product offering than our leading competitors. 

We are confident, our broad range of services, combined with our sheer size in backend production capacity makes us 

uniquely positioned in the semiconductor supply chain-providing and enhancing value to our customers at every stage. 

2000-a year of consolidation and expansion

With the current weakening market environment, our product and customer diversification remains the greatest safety cushion. 

Our geographical breadth, balanced exposure to all the 3Cs market segment, global and diversified customer base will serve us 

well to weather this upcoming slowdown. Our technological superiority in both back-end and front-end engineering testing is 

a distinguishing factor distancing us further away from the competition and entrenching our position as a key beneficiary for 

the outsourcing trend. 

15 year track record of building, consolidating and integrating

Our acquisitions both horizontally and vertically saw the two Motorola facilities in ChungLi, Taiwan and Paju, Korea 

synergising with existing operations; Motorola has become our top two customer.  We are now working towards increasing 

that customer base and turning these operations into full-fledged profit centers. 

With the bold move to acquire the number two in the test arena, ISE Labs and two additional acquisitions of front-end 

engineering facilities, that of LSI Logic and Cirrus Logic and finally with the acquisition of Universal Scientific Industrial, 

we have increased our capabilities to provide both front-end IC testing and board assembly services. 

Once again, ASE has led the competition in being the first to successfully acquire testing facilities of an IDM and integrating 

it successfully internally. We will continue to look for future acquisition targets which will help us gain access to new markets, 

technology, proximity to customers, and enhancement to our core competencies. 

ASE Materials provides additional value-add to customers

Our strategic move to establish ASE Materials in 1997 has reaped positive benefits as it has allowed us to manufacture our 

own materials for packaging solutions. We foresee that substrates will contribute to a larger part of packaging costs for 

advanced package types in the future.  Through ASE Materials, ASE Inc's packaging solutions are more cost competitive 

and we enjoy a much shorter cycle time. This will position us to capture the higher added-value in high-growth BGA and 

flip-chip markets over the next few years.  

Since 1997, we have steadily increased our BGA and CSP share of packaging revenue from 12% to 44% in 2000.  

We believe to-date, we are one of the biggest producers of BGA and CSP packages amongst the independent IC 

assembly houses globally. 
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Alliances to bolster our leading position

The strategic alliance between ASE and TSMC which had its roots in 1997 positioned us well for the foundry upturn in 2000. 

Through our strategic alliance with, and close geographic proximity to, the largest foundry in Taiwan, we have been able to 

offer our customers a total semiconductor manufacturing solution that includes access to foundry services in addition to our 

packaging, testing and direct shipment services.  Through ASE Malaysia, we also formed a strategic alliance with First Silicon 

in order to transfer this successful business model into the Singapore/Malaysia cluster.

Our depth and breadth of services and products also position us well to the outsourcing trend by the IDMs and fabless design 

houses, both in packaging and test capabilities. With every downturn, we will see the incremental rise of the secular trend of 

outsourcing, and our unique positioning and service capabilities in the value-chain makes us the natural choice amongst our 

competition. 

IC testing further distances us from the pack

Having more than 25% share of the test outsourcing market, our subsidiary ASE Test has been leading the pack in the testing 

arena. This strength adds on to our capability to offer leading edge test service to our customers who require this service. 

Compared with the packaging outsourcing numbers, test is only 8% outsourced and we are confident that this number would 

double by end of 2002. Together with this secular outsourcing trend which typically increases in a downturn, the rise of SOC 

and the capex requirements for advanced testing equipment makes it a natural breeding ground for IDMs to start outsourcing 

more of their test needs to specialized test houses like our subsidiary, thereby allowing them to focus on their core 

competencies. 
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Serving global customers and balanced end-markets mix

From our global presence spanning the Silicon Valley in the US, to Kaoshiung and ChungLi in Taiwan, Paju in Korea, Hong 
Kong, Malaysia and Singapore- we have worked in close proximity to customers and strategic partners. Serving more than 200 
customers who read like the “Who's Who" list of blue- chip semiconductor industry players covering the 3Cs market segments, 
it has helped us maintain a stable revenue stream and a natural hedge in times of downturns.  We have consciously moved 
towards ensuring our revenues from the various end-markets are more balanced.  

The ASE way - Creating value for customers and shareholders

Outsourcing became one of the fastest growing trends in the IC industry, fueled by the growth in fabless and system houses, 

as well as increasing outsourcing by the IDMs.  We have seen this trend provide explosive growth for foundries, and the 

packaging and testing companies are enjoying a similar experience. As devices become more complex and technology becomes 

obsolete as fast as it was unveiled, semiconductor manufacturers are moving to concentrate their efforts on meeting demands 

for increasingly smaller and faster devices rather than on packaging and test. This allows companies such as ASE to take on 

the role and provide leading edge testing and packaging technologies. 

Our success has been a team effort with strong core values at the forefront, and these are the same values which will 
withstand the many up and downturns in the industry. Key to maintaining our competitive edge is the Group's flexibility in 
decision-making and ability to identify and execute on opportunities before the rest of the competition. 

As we move into 2001, we are faced with a new challenge of managing our operations efficiently to ensure we continue to 
generate positive value for both our customers and shareholders. With the successful listing on the NYSE even in such a tough    
market environment, we have proven that ASE has the right mix of ingredients to be an innovator and leader into the new 
millennium. 

On a macro-scale, we are cautiously assessing the potential of new geographical locations to expand our presence and 
to manage costs.  With Taiwan as our home base, we are constantly on the lookout for cost- efficient locations to outsource 
labor- intensive operations and streamlining our operations in order to create more value.

In the next few years, we intend to maintain our technological superiority by consistently unveiling and pushing the limits 
of packaging technology, offering more cost effective packages such as wafer- level CSP, stacked-die packages to system-on-
a-package. These packages, some so new that it would take some time before they become mainstream products, but we are 
confident that we will lead in this technological foray.  Our building blocks are already in place - wafer bumping, flip-chip, 
stacked- die solutions, board- level assembly and substrate materials. The next challenge is to package all these foundation 
blocks and unveil the next industry standard.  
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Internally, we are working constantly to control costs and streamline our processes.  We have the added advantage of having 
our own ready supply of raw materials through ASE Materials which allows us to have a better grasp of the interconnect 
technology and materials required by customers and is a guaranteed source of supply.

The next year and months with the economic uncertainty, the dynamic competitive landscape will be viewed by some as an 
insurmountable challenge. We adopt a view that, in every challenge there is an opportunity waiting to be harnessed. 

ASE's mission has always been concentrating on what we know best which is on IC packaging and testing provisions, and 
further defining ourselves as a SERVICE company. In these challenging times, we seek our customers and shareholders 
continued support to partner with us. At ASE, we strive to constantly provide outstanding value-add and leading edge turnkey 
assembly and test solutions. 

I end off by saying; we wish to extend our appreciation to all our shareholders, customers, and manufacturers for your 
support of the ASE Group in 2000. We assure you that the entire staff remains dedicated to working harder to create more 
value for all in the coming years.

Richard H.P. Chang

Vice-Chairman, Chief Executive Officer

Jason C.S. Chang

Chairman, Chief Operating Officer
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Company Introduction

Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc. is one of the world's largest independent providers of semiconductor packaging 

services.  Together with our subsidiary,  ASE Test Limited, the company is also one of the world's largest independent providers 

of semiconductor testing services that included front-end engineering testing , wafer probing and final testing services.  Our 

global base of over 200 customers includes leading semiconductor companies across a wide range of end use applications such 

as Advanced Micro Devices Inc,  Altera Corporation, ATI Technologies Inc, Cirrus Logic International Ltd ,  Conexant Systems 

Inc, Delphi Automotive Systems Corp,  DSP Group,  LSI Logic Corporation,  Motorola Inc,  Philips Electronics NV,  Qualcomm 

Incorporated,  ST Microelectronics Pte Ltd and VIA Technologies Inc.

Semiconductor packaging is the processing of bare semiconductors into finished semiconductors with enhanced electrical 

and thermal characteristics.  Semiconductor testing is the use of sophisticated equipment and customized software programs 

to electrically test specified attributes of semiconductors.  We offer packaging and testing services on both stand- alone and 

turnkey basis.  Turnkey services consist of the integrated packaging, testing and direct shipment of semiconductors to end-

users designated by our customers.

Brothers Jason C S Chang and Richard H P Chang founded the company in 1984.  Commercial production began at the 

Company's packaging facility located in the Nantze Export Processing Zone in Kaohsiung,  Taiwan in July 1984. Over the 

years, the company has continued to expand its existing facilities.  The Company's shares were listed on the Taiwan Stock 

Exchange in July 1989 under Category A and shares of ASE Test, were listed directly on the NASDAQ National Market in June 

1996.  Through its ADS issuance in October 2000, ASE Inc. is also listed on NYSE under the symbol “ASX", In 1999, we 

acquired the semiconductor packaging and testing facilities of Motorola, Inc. in Chung-Li, Taiwan and Paju, Korea.  In the 

same year, it had also acquired a controlling 22.6% ( subsequently increasing to 23.28 % ) interest in Universal Scientific 

Industrial Co., Ltd., a leading contract provider of electronics board assembly services in Taiwan; and a 70 % ( subsequently 

increasing to 80.4% ) interest in ISE Labs Inc., a front- end engineering testing service provider based in San Jose, California.

The Group currently operates a number of packaging and testing facilities in Kaohsiung, Chung Li,  Taiwan; Penang, 

Malaysia; Singapore; Paju, Korea; and in San Jose and Santa Clara, United States.  These facilities have been certified 

as meeting the ISO 9002 quality standards by the International Standards Organization.  The Kaohsiung, Chung Li, Taiwan; 

Penang, Malaysia; Paju,  Korea facilities have also been certified as meeting the Quality System 9000 or QS-9000 quality 

standards. In the packaging and testing industry, both quality standards provide an independent verification to our customers 

as to the quality control system in our manufacturing processes and our continuous dedication to improvement and focus 

on the prevention of defects and reduction of variation and waste in the supply chain.  

Our sales and marketing offices are located in Hsinchu,  Chungli and Kaohsiung, Taiwan;  Paju, Korea and in Penang, Malaysia.  

Our appointed sales and customer service agents have also established sales and marketing offices in Santa Clara and Laguna 

Beach, California;  Tempe, Arizona; Austin, Texas; and Beverly,  Massachusetts in the United States; and Brussels,  Belgium.  

As of December 31, 2000, we employ over 18,121 people.  

Our facilities provide varying types or levels of services with respect to different end-product focus, customers, technologies 

and geographic locations;  ranging from our large-scale turnkey facilities in Taiwan to our specialized Korea facility dedicated 

to wireless communications and automotive end-products.  With our diverse facility base, we are able to tailor our packaging 

and testing solutions closely to our customers' needs.

11
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Industry Trends

Semiconductors are the basic building blocks used to create a variety of electronic products and systems such as personal 

computers, networking equipment, cellular phones and even electronic control mechanisms in automobiles.  

Continual technological advances in semiconductor designs and processes have resulted in the production of complex, highly 

integrated circuits that speed up execution, increase functionality and reliability at a lower cost.  Dataquest forecast the global 

semiconductor market to grow from US$222B in 2000 to US$339B in 2004 at a compounded annual growth rate of 14.9%.   

Historically, semiconductor companies designed, manufactured, packaged and tested semiconductors primarily in their own 

facilities ( also known as integrated device manufacturers ).  Recently, there has been a trend of outsourcing stages of the 

manufacturing process by such companies for strategic reasons such as better focus on their core competencies such as design 

and integration, and to meet increasing demands in capacity. Wafer foundry services ( the manufacture of bare semiconductor 

chips ) and semiconductor packaging form the largest segments of the semiconductor manufacturing services market.  Most of 

the world's major integrated device manufacturers use some independent manufacturing services  to maintain a strategic mix 

of internal and external manufacturing capacity.  They are also reducing their investments in new semiconductor packaging 

and testing operations and that several are contemplating divestment of their in- house packaging and testing operations.  

Motorola's sale ASE of its packaging and testing operations in Chung Li, Taiwan and Paju, Korea is an example.

There are also an increasing number of “fabless" design houses ( companies that specializes in integrated circuit design and 

marketing and do not have in-house manufacturing facilities ) which rely on outside companies to provide the manufacturing, 

packaging and testing of their semiconductors. With the availability of technologically advanced independent manufacturing 

services, “systems companies" which traditionally outsourced the manufacture of semiconductor components used in the 

assembly of their systems products to integrated device manufacturers are increasingly outsourcing to independent 

semiconductor manufacturing companies.

Our Capabilities - Products and Services

ASE Inc. is capable of providing services at all stages of the semiconductor manufacturing process except wafer fabrication.  

Our service capabilities range from of front-end engineering testing, wafer probing, packaging and final test.  

Front- end engineering testing refers to the testing of semiconductor prototypes before it goes into mass manufacturing. We 

provide front-end engineering testing services including software development, electrical verification, reliability analysis and 

failure analysis.

Wafer probing is a process whereby each individual die ( chip ) on the wafer is tested for defects to identify the operable 

semiconductors for packaging. 

Packaging, also known as assembly, is the processing of bare semiconductors into finished semiconductors and serves to 

protect the die and facilitate electrical connections and heat dissipation.  We offer a broad range of semiconductor packages 

using primarily surface mount technology ( SMT ) including plastic leaded chip carrier packages ( PLCC ), quad flat packages 

(QFP ), thin quad flat packages ( TQFP ), small outline plastic packages ( SOP ), small outline plastic J- bend packages ( SOJ ), thin 

small outline plastic packages ( TSOP ), and ball grid array ( BGA ).  SMT refers to the soldering of the leads on the 

semiconductors and other electronic components to the surface of the printed circuit board. 
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In year 2000, we made several successful developments in packaging technologies. 

  

We announced the availability of lead-free packages within our product portfolio. This is an initiative by ASE to support 

international efforts to eliminate the use of lead in electronics applications to reduce hazardous waste to protect the 

environment. The first lead-free product is our land grid array ( LGA ) which is applicable in portable PCs, PDAs and cellular 

phones.  

We are the first to equip assembly lines ready for 300mm wafers. The current industry trend is advancing towards larger 

wafer size which allows for a significant increase in the number of dice per wafer. For example, a 300-mm wafer has 125 

percent more area than a 200-mm wafer. Also, the larger wafer size mitigates the loss of dice that are partially cut off on 

the edge of the wafer.  

ASE is also the first to announce the world'S largest plastic ball grid array ( PBGA ). The larger area allows more 

electronic functions, which may compose of several semiconductor chips, to be integrated into a single package. 

This package technology is required for highly complex applications such as graphics microprocessors and 

networking chips. 

ASE was also the first independent contractor to offer wafer bumping services to customers.  Bumping is a technology 

which makes solder or gold bumps on the surface of the wafer ( dice ) and is used in most flip chip packaging.  Flip chip 

packaging is applicable to chip designs requiring size and weight reduction.  ASE has the capability to offer high volume 

bumping service for 200 -mm and 150 -mm wafers.  

We conduct final testing of a wide variety of logic and mixed signal semiconductors, with numbers of leads ranging from 

single digits to several hundreds, and operating frequencies up to 400MHz, which is at the high end of the range for the 

industry.  We also conduct final testing of a variety of memory products such as SRAM, DRAM and single- bit electrically 

programmable read-only memory semiconductors;  and we also offer “burn- in" testing of semiconductors which is the 

process of electrically stressing a device, usually at high temperature and voltage for a period of time to simulate continuous 

use.  The test is conducted to determine if this use would cause the failure of marginal devices.

We provide our customers a variety of services including “dry pack" which involves heating semiconductors to remove moisture 

before packaging and shipment, and “tape and reel" which involves tape packaging semiconductors for shipment to customers.  

Drop shipment services for shipment of semiconductors directly to end-users designated by our customers is also provided.  

Drop shipment eliminates the additional step of inspection by our customer before shipment to the end-user. Hence, quality 

of service is an important factor.
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Our Strategy

We aim to provide leading-edge semiconductor packaging and testing solutions which set the industry standards and facilitate 

the industry trend to outsource semiconductor manufacturing requirements.  The principal elements of our strategy are to:

● Expand strategically our production capability and product expertise through both internal growth and  acquisitions.

To meet the increasing demand for independent semiconductor packaging and testing services, we will continue to 

evaluate acquisition opportunities and plan to make new acquisitions in the future if suitable opportunities arise.  

We will evaluate the acquisition opportunities on the basis of access to new markets and technology, increased proximity 

to our existing and potential customers, and the enhancement of our production capacity and economies of scale and 

our management resources.

● Develop technologically advanced processes and materials to maintain leadership technology and capabilities.  

We intend to enhance our expertise both upstream and downstream in the semiconductor manufacturing process in 

order to better serve our customers in our core services of packaging and testing.  As product lives and production cycles 

shorten, customers increasingly value our ability as a downstream service provider, to work with them as an integral and 

strategic partner in the upstream development of their products.  Our acquisitions of ISE Labs to provide front- end 

engineering and, the establishment of ASE Materials for the production of interconnect materials such as leadframes and 

substrates has provided us with expertise in interconnect technology.  The acquisition of a controlling interest in Universal 

Scientific has also provided us access to process and product technology at the levels of module, board and systems 

assembly and test, which enables us to better anticipate industry trends and the needs of our end users, who are the 

end-clients of our customers.
�

● Strengthen and develop strategic alliances with providers of complementary manufacturing services.  

In order to offer our customers total semiconductor manufacturing solutions covering all stages of the manufacturing of 

their products from design to shipment, we see the crucial need to strengthen existing and develop new strategic alliances 

with providers of other complementary semiconductor manufacturing services such as foundries, equipment vendors, raw 

material suppliers and technology research institutes.  

● Better serve our customers through our diversified geographic presence in key centers for outsourced semiconductor 

manufacturing.

We are strategically located in Taiwan, Malaysia, Singapore, Korea and Silicon Valley in California.  Strategic presence 

enables us to work closely with our customers and other service providers, and enhances our responsiveness to the 

requirements of customers and shortens the production cycles by reducing the time required to ship semiconductors 

from one stage of the manufacturing to the next.
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● Achieve economies of scale from our expanded production capacity.  

We are constantly reviewing our organization structure to better integrate our operations in areas such as research and 

development, purchasing, manufacturing processes and materials, marketing and sales and information technology systems 

across our various facilities.  We have developed procedures to facilitate the sharing of the different expertise in process 

technology and practical know- how among our different facilities.  This sharing of best practices will significantly reduce 

the amount of time required by our facilities to install and operate a new production line for the packaging or testing of 

new product types for which one of our facilities may have greater expertise or know- how.

At ASE Inc, we believe that we are well - positioned to meet the requirements of semiconductor companies worldwide for 

outsourced packaging and testing services across a wide range of end user applications.  Firstly, we possess a broad range 

of advanced semiconductor packaging and testing services.  We have the expertise in product and process technology 

for the manufacture of increasingly advanced packages, which is enhanced by our expertise in interconnect materials and 

assembly of electronics boards.  Our financial position enables us to make significant investments for future growth through 

both the expansion of existing capacity and the acquisition of new businesses and operations.  We have experience in 

integrating acquired operations and using such operations to provide services to their former owners.  Our facilities are 

strategically located and with experienced teams in key centers for outsourced semiconductor manufacturing.  Lastly but not 

least, we have the ability to expand the traditional scope of turnkey services to offer total semiconductor manufacturing 

services to our customers through our strategic alliance with Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Limited, 

the world's largest dedicated semiconductor foundry.
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( In Million New Taiwan Dollars )

Net Sales

Gross Profit

Income from operations

Income before income tax and

minority interest and

pre-acquisition income

Net income

Earnings per share

Stock dividend

Total property

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and 

shareholders equity

Total employees

Market cap.

50,893.4  

15,326.1  

9,877.1  

8,403.6  

5,837.1  

         2.13

※  

83,256.5  

43,699.2  

108,341.2  

18,121    

60,268.8  

32,609.6

8,650.0

4,848.6

9,062.4

7,794.7

3.90

3.15

53,068.9

30,057.0

77,330.8

14,184

221,760.0

20,762.4

5,294.3

2,840.9

1,981.3

1,604.0

0.86

1.07

28,337.5

21,874.8

47,011.5

8,737

96,120.0

19,088.2

5,329.7

3,521.4

8,142.7

7,403.5

7.21

7.2

21,555.2

21,033.7

45,159.1

8,547

116,446.5

17,833.8

3,877.2

2,422.2

2,126.8

1,971.5

2.72

3.8

14,262.8

13,158.6

23,316.3

6,229

38,637.0

( including subsidiaries ) 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
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Net Sales

Gross Profit

Income from

Operations

Total Liabilities 

and Shareholders 

Equity

Market 

Capitalization

0            10,000          20,000         30,000          40,000        50,000         60,000

0                       5,000                    10,000                   15,000                  20,000

0             2,000            4,000            6,000            8,000          10,000         12,000

0             20,000         40,000          60,000          80,000         100,000       120,000

0                 50,000           100,000           150,000            200,000          250,000

2000
1999
1998
1997
1996

2000
1999
1998
1997
1996

2000
1999
1998
1997
1996

2000
1999
1998
1997
1996

2000
1999
1998
1997
1996

In Million New Taiwan Dollars

In Million New Taiwan Dollars

In Million New Taiwan Dollars

In Million New Taiwan Dollars

In Million New Taiwan Dollars

NT$ 1.70 to be approved at the shareholders meeting※
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Packaging revenues 

- Ball grid array (BGA)

- Thin quad flat packages ( TQFP)

- Quad flat packages (QFP)

- Small outline plastic J-ben packages (SOJ), 

plastic dual in-line package (PDIP), 

plastic leaded chip carrier (PLCC) and others

Testing revenues 

- Logic & mixed signal final test

- Memory test

- Others

Other 

Total net revenues

( revenues in NT$ million; percentages of net revenues )

1999 2000 

Revenues  % Revenues  %

$     8,655

 4,512

 5,394

5,962

7,509

 285

0

 293

 $    32,610

27 %

14 %

17 %

18 %

23 %

1 %

0 %

1 %

100 %

 $     16,810

 6,939

 5,541

 

8,738

12,403

 296

 70

 96

 $     50,893

33 %

14 %

11 %

17 %

24 %

1 %

0 %

0 %

100 %
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Overview

Our net revenues increased from NT$ 32.6 billion in 1999 to NT$50.9 billion (US$1.5 billion ) in 2000.  Our efforts in 

strengthening technical capabilities and broadening services scope have begun to materialize and we have been able to 

capitalize on the strong industry growth.  We are continuing to grow our business given the solid foundation we have 

built up in the last few years.  Our growth is enhanced by a well -balanced exposure in the 3C areas – communications, 

computers and consumer applications  Communications applications accounted for 37% of total revenues in 2000 compared 

to 32% in 1999.  Computing applications contributed 30% of total revenues in 2000 compared to 45% in 1999.  Consumer 

and automotive applications garnered 30% of total revenues in 2000 compared to 17% in 1999.  We are therefore much less 

affected by down-turns in a single end market.  Our volume growth is increasingly concentrated in the packaging of higher 

priced package types and the testing of more complex semiconductor devices.

Over the last three years, testing revenues have grown faster than packaging sales.  In 1998, 1999 and 2000, packaging sales 

accounted for 81.2%, 75.2%, and 74.7%, while testing revenues accounted for 15.1%, 23.9%, and 25.1%, respectively, 

of our net revenues. We expect this trend to continue as industry trends suggest a higher growth rate for testing compared to 

packaging services. The portion of the semiconductor testing market currently accounted for by independent testing service 

providers is only 8% which is smaller than that of packaging which stands at 40%; we firmly believe that outsourced testing 

will grow at a faster rate than packaging.  

Pricing and Revenue Mix

The semiconductor industry is characterized by a general trend towards declining prices for products and services of a given 

technology over time.  During times of intense competition and adverse conditions in the semiconductor industry, such as that 

experienced in 1998, the pace of this decline in prices of our services may be more rapid than that experienced in other years.  

In 2000, however, the average selling prices were relatively stable as the industry was going through a rapid expansion period 

given that overall capacity was at a shortage.  In our past experience, the average selling price for the same device declines 

10 % to 15% annually under normal industry situations.

Declines in selling prices have been partially offset over the last three years by a change in our revenue mix.  In particular, 

we have been packaging more higher-priced package types, such as ball grid array, also called BGA, and advanced thin quad 

flat packages, also called TQFPs, and testing more complex semiconductor devices.  The following table shows for the period 

indicated breakdown of our packaging and testing revenues by product type both in absolute terms and as percentages of 

net revenues.
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1999

2000 

2000 
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57.2 %

28.9 %

11.3 %

2.6 %

65.1%

24.7 %

6.5 %

3.7 %

North America 

Taiwan

The rest of Asia

Europe

We will actively continue to develop and offer new technologies in packaging and testing services, and seek to improve 

production efficiencies for older technology, in order to mitigate the effects of declining prices on our profitability.

North America is our most important sales destination, accounting for 65.1% of our revenues in 2000 compared to 57.2% 

in 1999.  Taiwan contributed 24.7% of our revenues in 2000 compared to 28.9% in 1999.  The following table indicates the 

breakdown of our revenues by geographic locations. 

Higher Fixed Costs

Our operations are capital intensive by nature and are characterized by relatively high fixed costs.  Our primary fixed costs 

are for packaging and testing equipment.  We currently operate an aggregate of 3,973 wire bonders and 1,029 testers.  

In addition, we maintain a variety of other types of packaging and testing equipment.  Increases or decreases in capacity 

utilization rates can have a significant effect on gross profit margins, as the unit cost of packaging and testing services 

generally decreases as fixed charges, such as equipment depreciation expense, are allocated over a larger number of units.  

The ability to maintain or enhance our margins will continue to depend in part on our ability to effectively manage 

capacity utilization levels.

Depreciation is the principal component of the cost of testing revenues.  In 1998, 1999 and 2000, depreciation expenses as 

a percentage of net revenues were 14.9%, 16.3% and 15.7%, respectively.  The rise in depreciation expense as a percentage 

of net sales from 1998 to 1999 partially reflects the increased contribution of testing to net revenues, as well as an increase 

in the cost of packaging and testing equipment.  The decline in depreciation expense as a percentage of net sales from 1999 

to 2000 primarily reflects the increased capacity utilization at our packaging and testing facilities.

Our customer base consists of both integrated device manufacturers ( IDMs ) and fabless design houses.  IDM accounting for 

approximately 55% and 60 % of our revenues in 1999 and 2000, while fabless design houses contributing 45% and 40 % of 

our revenues in 1999 and 2000, respectively.  The following table indicates our top ten customers, measured by their relative 

significance to our revenues, in alphabetical order.

ALTERA

AMD

ATI

CIRRUS LOGIC

ESS

LSI

MOTOROLA

SIS

STM

VIA

ALTERA

ATI

CIRRUS LOGIC

LSI

MOTOROLA

ON SEMI

PHILIPS

STM

VIA

VLSI



Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, financial data from our consolidated statements of income, expressed 

as a percentage of net revenues.

Year Ended December 31, ( percentage of net revenues )

Net revenues

Packaging

Testing

Other

Cost of revenues

Packaging

Testing

Other

Gross Profit

Packaging

Testing

Other

Operating expenses

Operating income

Non-operating income (expenses )

Income before income tax and minority interest

Income tax benefit (expense )

Income before minority interest

Pre-acquisition interest

Minority interest in net income of subsidiary

Net income

  100.0 

81.2 

15.1 

3.7 

(74.5)

(63.5)

(7.9)

(3.1)

25.5 

17.8 

7.2 

0.5 

(11.8)

13.7 

(4.1)

9.6 

0.7 

10.3 

0.0 

(2.6)

7.7 

100.0 

75.2 

23.9 

0.9 

(73.5)

(57.6)

(14.4)

(1.5)

26.5 

17.6 

9.5 

(0.6)

(11.6)

14.9 

12.9 

27.8 

(1.4)

26.4 

(0.2)

(2.3)

23.9 

100.0 

74.7 

25.1 

0.2 

(69.9)

(55.0)

(14.7)

(0.2)

30.1 

19.7 

10.4 

0.0 

(10.7)

             19.4 

(2.9)

             16.5 

(2.1)

             14.4 

0.0 

(2.9)

11.5 

1998 1999 2000
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Raw Material Costs

A substantial amount of all our raw materials costs are accounted for by packaging, as testing requires minimal materials.  In 

1998, 1999 and 2000, raw materials as a percentage of our net revenues was 34.9%, 30.0% and 28.7%, respectively.  Raw 

materials as a proportion of net revenues have been decreasing because of the higher contribution of testing to net revenues 

and a decrease in raw material prices.  However, we expect raw materials to become an increasingly important component of 

the cost of our packaging sales and we plan to continue our development and production of interconnect material through 

ASE Material in order to ensure an adequate supply of raw materials at competitive prices and reduce production time.

%

%

%

%

%

%



( percentage of net revenues )

1998 1999 2000

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, a breakdown of our total cost of revenues and operating expenses, 

expressed as a percentage of net revenues.

Year Ended December 31,

Cost of revenues

Raw materials

Labor costs

Depreciation

Other

Total cost of revenues

Operating expenses

Selling

General and administrative (1)

Goodwill amortization (2)

Research and development

Total operating expenses

34.9

12.5

14.9

12.2

74.5

3.6

4.4

1.6

2.2

11.8

30.0

13.0

16.3

14.4

73.5

2.8

5.0

1.6

2.2

11.6

28.7

12.9

15.7

12.6

69.9

2.0

5.1

1.1

2.5

10.7

(1) Excludes goodwill amortization

(2) Included in general and administrative expense in the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Year Ended December 31, 2000 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1999

Net Revenues.  Net revenues increased by 56.1% to NT$50,893.4 million ( US$1.5 billion ) in 2000 from NT$32,609.6 

million in 1999.  Assembly revenues grew 55.1% to NT$38,028.8 million ( US$1,146 million ) in 2000 from NT$24,523.0 

million in 1999.  Testing revenues increased 63.8% to NT$12,768.4 million ( US$385 million ) in 2000 from NT$7,793.2 

million in 1999.  Increases in assembly and testing revenues resulted primarily from an increase in net revenues at our existing 

facilities, as well as the effects of the acquisitions of ISE Labs, ASE Chung-Li and ASE Korea in 1999.  After eliminating the 

results of ISE Labs, ASE Chung-Li and ASE Korea for comparative purposes, our net revenues for 2000 increased by 44.4% 

compared to 1999, reflecting a 45.2 % increase in packaging revenues and a 59.4 % increases in testing revenues.  This 

increase was partially offset by a decrease in the average realized selling prices for packaging and testing services.  The 

decrease in the average realized selling prices reflects the general trend in the semiconductor industry of declining prices for 

each input/output lead on a semiconductor device.  This decrease was partially offset by a change in the revenue mix as our 

BGA packages, which typically command higher selling prices as a result of the higher number of leads per device, accounted 

for a greater portion of the packaging volume, and as we tested more complicated semiconductor devices. 

Gross Profits.  Gross profit increased by 77.2 % to NT$15,326.1 million ( US$462 million ) in 2000 from NT$8,650.0 million 

in 1999.  Our gross margin improved to 30.1% in 2000 compared to 26.5% in 1999 primarily as a result of a higher revenue 

contribution from testing operations and decreases in raw material costs and depreciation as a percentage of net revenues.  

The improved gross margin was also attributable to decreases in factory supplies and other manufacturing overheads, partially 

offset by increases in equipment maintenance and provision for inventory obsolescence, all as percentages of net revenues.  

Raw material costs in year 2000 were NT$14,620.4 million, or 28.7% of net revenues compared to 30.0% in 1999.  This 

decrease mainly resulted from a change in the revenue mix, as testing services, which incur almost no raw material costs, 

accounted for a greater portion of our net revenues, and a decrease in raw material prices.  Depreciation expense for the year 

was NT$8,127.6 million, compared with NT$5,128.3 million in 1999. As a percentage of net revenues, depreciation expense 

slightly decreased to 15.7 % in 2000 from 16.3 % in 1999,  Gross margins for packaging increased to 26.3% in 2000 from 

23.5% in 1999 primarily due to decreases in direct and indirect labor, raw material costs and depreciation as percentages of 

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%

%



23

packaging revenue.  Our gross margin for testing increased to 41.5% in 2000 from 39.8% in 1999 primarily due to a decrease 

in other manufacturing costs, partially offset by increases in depreciation and amortization as well as direct and indirect labor 

costs, all as percentages of testing revenue.

Operating Income.  Operating income rose 103.7% to NT$9,877.1 million ( US$298 million ) in 2000 from NT$4,848.6 

million in 1999. Operating margin, meanwhile, increased to 19.4% in 2000 compared to 14.9% for 1999, reflecting the higher 

gross margin and decreases in selling, general and administrative expenses, partially offset by an increase in research and 

development expense, all as a percentage of net revenues.  Selling, general and administrative expenses amounted to 

NT$5,449.0 million in 2000, representing 10.7 % of net revenues in 2000 compared to 11.6 % in 1999.  This decrease was 

primarily due to economies of scale realized from increased sales volumes.  Research and development expenses in year 2000 

were NT$1,262.5 million, or 2.5% of net revenues compared to 2.2% in 1999.  The increase in percentage of revenue primarily 

resulted from increases in headcount for research and development personnel and in depreciation of testers and other 

equipment dedicated to research and development uses.

Net Non-Operating Income.  A net non-operating loss of NT$1,473.6 million (US$44 million) was recorded in 2000 

compared with net non-operating income of NT$4,213.9 million in 1999.  The difference was as a result of a one-time 

capital gains of NT$5,544.1 million in 1999 in connection with the sales of ASE Test ordinary shares by our subsidiary J&R 

Holding Limited through a public offering of Taiwan Depositary Receipts and the sale of ASE Inc. common shares by our 

subsidiaries and affiliates in a private placement of GDSs.  Most of the common shares underlying the GDSs were acquired by 

our subsidiaries between March 1996 and April 1998 as part of a share purchase program instituted in support of ROC 

government policies.  A small amount was realized from open market sales of ASE Test Taiwan Depositary Receipts by our 

subsidiaries and affiliates.  Non-operating income for the year 2000 was NT$1,217.0 million, which primarily consisted of 

interest revenues of NT$554.2 million, foreign exchange gains of NT$302.7 and gain on sales of investments of NT$91.7 

million.  Net foreign exchange influence turned positive in year 2000 compared to a foreign exchange loss in 1999, reflecting 

the unrealized foreign exchange gains on assets that are denominated in foreign currency due to the depreciation of NT 

dollars.  Non- operating expenses for the year 2000 were NT$2,690.6 million, which primarily consisted of interest expenses 

of NT$2,092.2 million and investment loss under equity method of NT$237.2 million.  The interest expenses primarily 

resulted from the convertible bonds due 2004 issued by ASE Test in June 1999 and other long-term debts, which were 

used to finance our acquisitions of USI, ISE Labs, ASE Chung-Li, and ASE Korea.

 

Net Income.  Net income for 2000 declined 25.1% to NT$5,837.1 million (US$176 million) from NT$7,794.7 million in 

1999.  Excluding the one-time capital gains of NT$5,544.1 million in 1999, net income grew 159.4% on a full - year basis.  

Adjusted net income increased in 2000 compared to 1999 primarily as a result of the foregoing factors, partially offset by an 

increase in our effective tax rate to 12.7% in 2000 compared to 5.1% in 1999. 



( in NT dollar millions )  ( unaudited )Quarter Ended

Consolidated Net Revenues

Packaging

Testing

Other

Total

Consolidated Gross Profit

Packaging

Testing

Consolidated Gross Margin

Packaging

Testing

 $    8,378.4

2,776.2

7.0

 $   11,161.6

 $    2,320.1

1,208.7

27.7 %

43.5 %

Mar. 31,
2000

Jun. 30,
2000

Jun. 30,
2000

Dec. 31,
2000

Consolidated Quarterly Net Revenues, Gross Profit and Gross Margin

The following table sets forth our unaudited consolidated net revenues and gross profit for the quarterly periods indicated.  

The following table should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes included in 

this annual report.  Net revenues and gross profit for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of the results for any future 

period.  We expect that our quarterly net revenues and gross profit may fluctuate significantly.

Consolidated net revenues increased steadily in the third and fourth quarters of 2000 compared with the first and second 

quarters of 2000.  Packaging revenues increased by 14.5% to a total of NT$20,303.4 million in the third and fourth quarters 

of 2000 from a total of NT$17,725.4 million in the first and second quarters of 2000.  Our testing revenues increased by 

20.5% to a total of NT$6,978.9 million in the third and fourth quarters of 2000 from NT$5,789.5 million in the first and 

second quarters of 2000.  These increases in revenues primarily resulted from growth of volume output.    

Consolidated gross profit increased by 9.4% to a total of NT$8,005.6 million in the third and fourth quarters of 2000 

compared with a total of NT$7,320.5 million in the first and second quarters of 2000.  Consolidated gross margin declined 

sequentially from 31.3% in the first quarter to 30.8%, 29.3% and 29.3% in the second, third and fourth quarters, 

respectively, primarily as a result of declines in average realized selling prices and utilization rates.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The principal sources of cash are cash generated from operations and debt financing and, in certain years, capital raising and 

proceeds from the sale of investments. Our primary uses of cash have been to fund capital expenditures and working capital 

requirements related to operations and expansion. Cash generated from operations was NT$17,643.2 million (US$532 million) 

in 2000, NT$7,017.2 million in 1999 and NT$5,194.2 million in 1998. The increase in cash generated from operations in 2000 

reflected increases in recurring net income (excluding extraordinary capital gains ), partially offset by increases in accounts 

receivable and inventory.  Accounts receivable, inventory, accounts payable and accrued expense increased primarily as a result 

of our sales growth. The accounts receivable collection improved to an average of 60 days in 2000 from an average of 62 days 

in 1999, while the average days inventory improved to 29 days in 2000 from 32 days in 1999.  

 

 $    9,347.1

3,013.3

75.2

 $   12,435.6

 $    2,568.2

1,285.8

27.5 %

42.7 %

  $  10,458.9

3,440.1

5.2

 $  13,904.2

 $    2,688.7

1,433.9

25.7 %

41.7 %

  $    9,844.4

3,538.8

8.8

 $  13,392.0

 $   2,439.9

1,366.0

24.8 %

38.6 %
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In connection with the expansion of production capacity, we have incurred capital expenditures of NT$7,447.7 million, 

NT$11,097.4 million and NT$31,463.5 million (US$949 million) in 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

As of December 31, 2000, we had total short- term lines of credit of NT$23,933.1 million (US$722 million), of which 

NT$9,684.4 million (US$92 million) had been drawn. The outstanding long-term bank loans, less current portion, 

were NT$10,329.9 million (US$311 million). Most of our long-term bank loans are denominated in NT dollars. In addition, 

as of December 31, 2000, we had outstanding convertible bonds denominated in US dollars in an aggregate amount of 

NT$12,229.2 million (US$369 million), including amounts outstanding under bonds guaranteed by ASE Test. See Note 13 

of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for other information.  

We have also raised capital at both the group level and the subsidiary level to meet investment and capital requirements.  In 

July 2000, ASE Test completed a US$276 million offering of ordinary shares followed by a US$140 million offering of 

American Depositary Shares in September 2000. 

Taxation

Based on their respective statuses either as a company which is engaged in designated businesses in Taiwan or a "pioneer" 

company in Malaysia, the operating companies in the ASE Group were granted exemptions from ROC or Malaysia income 

taxes, as the case may be, generally for a period of four or five years, both at the initial stages of their operations and 

following subsequent capital increases with respect to income attributable to capital increases. These tax holidays resulted 

in tax savings of approximately NT$508.8 million, NT$779.4 million and NT$700.7 million (US$21 million) in 1998, 1999 and 

2000, respectively. The current tax holiday under the ROC Statute for Upgrading of Industries expires at the end of 2000, but 

may be extended through cash injections from shareholders, such as rights offerings, the proceeds of which are 

used to purchase eligible machinery and equipment. We have not conducted a rights offering to our shareholders since 1996. 

The ROC Ministry of Finance indicated that commencing 2000, this tax holiday may also be extended through the 

capitalization of retained earnings, that is, through the issuance of stock dividends. ASE Malaysia's tax holiday in Malaysia 

expired on June 30, 1999 and ASE Malaysia has received approval to be a “pioneer high technology" company in Malaysia, 

which entitles us to another five -year tax holiday substantially similar to our previous tax holiday. This tax holiday 

commenced retroactively on July 1, 1999.  See Note17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

With facilities located in special export zones such as the Nantze Export Processing Zone in Taiwan and the Bayan Lepas 

Free Trade Zone in Malaysia, we enjoy exemptions from various import duties and commodity taxes on imported machinery, 

equipment, raw materials and components. Goods produced by companies located in these zones and exported or sold to 

others within the zones are exempt from otherwise applicable commodity or business taxes.

Our effective income tax rate was 0 %, 5.1% and 12.7% in 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.  The effective tax rate was 

significantly lower in 1998 and 1999 because we had substantial capital gains income in those years that was not subject to 

ROC corporate tax.

25



Financial Statements 



27

Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc.
Financial Statements as of December 31, 2000 and 1999

Together with Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc. as of December 31, 

2000 and 1999, and the related statements of income, changes in shareholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended.  

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion 

on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China.  Those standards 

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free 

of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a 

reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 

Corporation as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, 

in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Republic of China.

March 27, 2001

Notice to Readers

The accompanying financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of operations and cash 

flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of 

any other jurisdictions.  The standards, procedures and practices to audit such financial statements are those generally 

accepted and applied in the Republic of China.



BALANCE SHEETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Short - term investments -net of allowance for declined 

market value of $4,849 in 2000 (Note 2 )

Notes receivable 

Accounts receivable - net (Notes 3 and 17)

Inventories (Notes 4 )

Prepayments and other

Deferred income tax assets - net (Notes 2 and 14)

Total Current Assets

LONG -TERM INVESTMENTS

Shares of stock ( Notes 2, 5 and 17 )

Bonds ( Notes 2 and 6 )

Total Long - Term Investments

PROPERTIES (Notes 2, 7, 12, 18 and 19)

Cost

 Land

 Buildings and improvements

 Machinery and equipment

 Transportation equipment

 Furniture and fixtures

 Leased assets

 Total cost

Accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress

Machinery in transit and prepayments

OTHER ASSETS ( Notes 8, 18 and 19)

TOTAL ASSETS

$   6,793,592

   15,151

   188,711

   4,689,997

   1,757,719

   143,858

   701,954

   14,290,982

   38,000,764

   19,833

   38,020,597

   61,984

   3,819,861

   16,561,684

   41,366

   180,413

   3,444,184

   24,109,492

   8,765,815

   15,343,677

   806,022

   1,565,259

   17,714,958

   699,608

$  70,726,145

10

   -

   -

   7

   2

   -

   1

   20

   54

   -

   54

   -

   5

   24

   -

   -

   5

   34

   12

   22

   1

   2

   25

   1

100

5

   -

   -

   8

   2

   -

   1

   16

   58

   -

   58

   -

   6

   26

   -

   1

   1

   34

   13

   21

   1

   3

   25

   1

100

 $   2,270,298

   90,000

   178,601

   3,778,209

   1,230,409

   88,869

   300,000

   7,936,386

   29,229,974

   194,074

   29,424,048

   47,821

   3,190,900

   13,221,942

   41,959

   174,813

   254,609

   16,932,044

   6,353,293

   10,578,751

   391,737

   1,582,106

   12,552,594

   542,691

$ 50,455,719

ASSETS
2000 1999

Amount Amount 

( In Thousand New Taiwan Dollars )December 31, 2000 and 1999

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

% % 

(Forward )
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CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short - term borrowings ( Note 9 )

Commercial papers payable ( Note 10)

Accounts payable ( Note 17)

Income tax payable

Accrued expenses ( Note 15)

Current portion of long-term debts ( Notes 12 and 18)

Other

Total Current Liabilities

LONG -TERM BONDS PAYABLE ( Notes 2 and 11)

LONG - TERM DEBTS ( Notes 12 and 18)

ACCRUED PENSION COST ( Notes 2 and 15)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES - NET ( Notes 2 and 14)

DEFERRED PROFIT FROM RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION ( Note 2 )

Total Liabilities

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY ( Notes 2 , 11 and 13 )

Share capital

Capital surplus

 Capital in excess of par value

 Net gain on disposal of properties

 Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due

 to change in percentage of ownership

 Total capital surplus

Retained earnings

Unrealized loss on long - term investment

in shares of stock

Cumulative translation adjustments

Total Shareholders’ Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

$   1,822,973

   2,244,985

   2,384,179

   609,000

   741,026

   3,459,115

   645,336

   11,906,614

   8,048,495

   5,985,193

   220,311

892,000

4,318

   27,056,931

   27,520,000

   3,171,933

   23,109

   4,075,783

   7,270,825

   8,200,947

 ( 546,829 )

   1,224,271

   43,669,214

$ 70,726,145

3

   3

   3

   1

   1

   5

   1

   17

   11

   9

   -

1

-

   38

   39

   4

   -

   6

   10

   12

 ( 1 )

   2

   62

100

2

   -

   4

   -

   1

   3

   2

   12

   14

   13

   -

1

-

   40

   39

   -

   -

   2

   2

   18

   -

   1

   60

100

 $   1,151,037

   -

   1,952,495

   318,000

   427,275

   1,438,243

   970,330

   6,257,380

   7,208,746

   6,520,935

   172,182

235,000

4,440

   20,398,683

   19,800,000

   1,921

   11,879

   669,874

   683,674

   9,243,346

   -

   330,016

   30,057,036

$ 50,455,719

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
2000 1999

Amount Amount 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

% %
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME

NET SALES

COST OF SALES

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling

General and administrative

Research and development

Total Operating Expenses

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

NON- OPERATING INCOME

Interest ( Note 20 )

Investment income - net ( Notes 2 and 5)

Foreign exchange gain – net ( Notes 2 and 20 )

Other

Total Non- Operating Income

NON - OPERATING EXPENSES

Interest ( Notes 2 and 7)

Foreign exchange loss – net ( Notes 2, 11 and 20 )

Other

Total Non - Operating Expenses

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX

INCOME TAX ( Notes 2 and 14 )

NET INCOME

 $ 25,524,296

   18,529,603

   6,994,693

   575,958

   637,379

   520,310

   1,733,647

   5,261,046

   239,925

   2,032,224

   115,467

   109,009

   2,496,625

   1,066,021

   -

   32,787

   1,098,808

   6,658,863

   821,714

  $   5,837,149

100

   73

   27

   2

   3

   2

   7

   20

   1

   8

   1

   -

   10

   4

   -

   -

   4

   26

   3

   23

  

100

   74

   26

   3

   3

   2

   8

   18

   1

   33

   -

   -

   34

   4

   2

   -

   6

   46

   1

   45

 $ 17,498,901

   12,908,804

   4,590,097

   467,772

   596,037

   303,232

   1,367,041

   3,223,056

   169,845

   5,672,908

   -

   61,057

   5,903,810

   689,165

   364,549

   35,450

   1,089,164

   8,037,702

   243,036

  $  7,794,666

2000
ASSETS

1999

Amount Amount 

( In Thousand New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share )For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

(Forward )

% % 
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ASSETS
2000 1999

Amount Amount 

( In Thousand New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share )For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

% % 

EARNINGS PER SHARE ( Notes 2 and 16)

Based on weighted average number of

outstanding shares of 2,677,602,508 in 2000

and 1,974,746,466 in 1999

Primary

Fully diluted

Based on weighted average number of

outstanding shares of 2,644,489,195 in 1999

after giving retroactive adjustment to 2000 

stock dividends

Primary

Fully diluted

   

$   2.13

   $   2.13

   

$   3.90

   $   3.90

   

$   2.91

   $   2.90

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 1999

Increase in authorized capital, June 6, 1999

Appropriations of 1998 earnings

 Legal reserve

 Compensation to directors and supervisors

 Bonus to employees – cash

 Bonus to employees – stock

 Stock dividends – 7.8%

Stock dividends from capital surplus – 2.9%

Transfer of subsidiary's net gain on disposal 

of properties

Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due to 

change in percentage of ownership

Reversal of unrealized loss on long-

term investment in shares of stock

Net income in 1999

Transfer of net gain on disposal of properties

Cumulative translation adjustments

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999

Conversion of convertible bonds into common stock

Increase in authorized capital, July 11, 2000

Appropriations of 1999 earnings

 Legal reserve

 Compensation to directors and supervisors

 Bonus to employees - cash

 Bonus to employees- stock

 Stock dividends – 31.5%

Capital increase in cash through the issuance of 

American Depositary Receipts

Transfer of subsidiary's net gain on 

disposal of properties

Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due to change 

in percentage of ownership

Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due to unrealized 

loss on long-term investment in shares of stock

Net income in 2000

Transfer of net gain on disposal of properties

Cumulative translation adjustments 

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000

 $ 17,800,000

   -

   -

   -

   -

   95,400

   1,388,400

   516,200

  

 -

   

-

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   19,800,000

   3,551

   -

   -

   -

   -

   478,331

   6,238,118

   

1,000,000

   

-

  

 -

   

  -

   -

   -

 -

  $ 27,520,000

 1,780,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  -

  9,540,000

  138,840,000

  51,620,000

  

-

  

-

 

 -

  -

  -

  -

 

  1,980,000,000

  355,086

  -

  -

  -

  -

  47,833,062

  623,811,852

  

100,000,000

  

-

  

-

  

  -

  -

  -

 -

 

  2,752,000,000

 2,200,000,000

  200,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  

-

  

-

  

-

  -

  -

  -

 

  2,400,000,000

  -

  800,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  

-

  

-

  

-

 

-

  -

  -

  -

 

  3,200,000,000

CAPITAL SURPLUS

For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Issued and Outstanding

CAPITAL STOCK ( $10 Par Value ) 

Authorized

Shares  

Shares Amount

$    518,121

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

 (516,200)

   

-

  

 -

  

 -

   -

   -

   -

   1,921

   32,102

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

3,137,910

  

 -

   

-

   

   -

   -

   -

-

  $ 3,171,933

 $  6,212

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

4,931

   

-

   

-

   -

   736

   -

   11,879

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   

9,470

   

-

   

-

   -

   1,760

   -

  

$ 23,109

Capital in
Excess of
Par Value

Net Gain 
on

Disposal
of

Properties 
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$    664,840

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   

5,034

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   669,874

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   

-

   

3,405,909

   

-

   -

   -

   -

  $ 4,075,783

$ 1,189,173

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

 ( 516,200)

   

4,931

  

 5,034

  

 -

   -

   736

   -

   683,674

   32,102

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

3,137,910

   

9,470

   

3,405,909

   

-

   -

   1,760

   -

  $ 7,270,825

 $ 1,389,529

   -

   160,255

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

  

 -

  

 -

   -

   -

   -

   1,549,784

   -

   -

   779,393

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   

-

  

 -

   

-

   -

   -

   -

  $ 2,329,177

 $ 1,695,998

   -

 (160,255)

 (28,800)

 ( 5,500)

 (95,400)

 (1,388,400)

   -

 (4,931)

 

(113,080)

   

-

   7,794,666

 (736)

   -

   7,693,562

   -

   -

 ( 779,393)

 ( 139,200)

 (12,669)

 ( 478,331)

 ( 6,238,118 )

  

 -

 

(9,470)

   

-

   

-

   5,837,149

 (1,760)

   -

  $ 5,871,770

 $ 3,085,527

   -

   -

 ( 28,800)

 ( 5,500)

 ( 95,400)

 (1,388,400)

   -

 

(4,931)

 

(113,080)

  

 -

   7,794,666

 (736)

   -

   9,243,346

   -

   -

   -

 (139,200)

 (12,669)

 ( 478,331)

 (6,238,118)

   

-

 

(9,470)

   

-

   

-

   5,837,149

 (1,760)

   -

  $ 8,200,947

($ 703,865 )

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

  

 -

   

-

   

703,865

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   

-

  

 -

 

( 546,829)

   -

   -

   -

 ($ 546,829)

 $ 503,973

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

  

 -

  

 -

   -

   -

 (173,957)

   330,016

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

  

 -

   

-

   

-

   -

   -

   894,255

  $ 1,224,271

 $ 21,874,808

   -

   -

 (28,800)

 ( 5,500)

   -

   -

   -

   

-

 (108,046)

   

703,865

   7,794,666

   -

 (173,957)

   30,057,036

   35,653

   -

   -

 (139,200)

 (12,669)

   -

   -

   

4,137,910

  

 -

   3,405,909

 

( 546,829)

   5,837,149

   -

   894,255

  $ 43,669,214

CAPITAL SURPLUS

( In Thousand New Taiwan Dollars, Except Par Value )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Adjustment
of Equity in

Subsidiary due 
to Change in
Percentage of

Ownership

Total

RETAINED EARNINGS

Legal
Reserve

Unappropriated
Earnings

UNREALIZED

LOSS ON

LONG - TERM

INVESTMENT

IN SHARES

  OF STOCK 

CUMULATIVE
TRANSLATION
ADJUSTMENTS

( Note 2 ) 

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDERS’

EQUITY
Total 
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities:

 Depreciation

 Amortization

 Provision for doubtful accounts

 Provision for sales allowance

 Accrued interest on convertible bonds

 Provision for loss on long -term bond investment

 Investment income – net

 Gain on sale of investment

 Loss on disposal of properties-net

 Deferred income taxes

 Exchange (gain ) loss on long - term foreign:

  Bonds payable

  Debts

  Investment in bonds

 Cash dividends from long -term stock investments

 Reversal of allowance for loss on short-term Investments

 Deferred profit from related party transaction

 Changes in operating assets and liabilities

  Notes receivable

  Accounts receivable

  Inventories

  Prepayments and other 

  Notes payable

  Accounts payable

  Accrued expenses

  Income tax payable

  Accrued pension cost

  Other current liabilities

Effect of exchange rate changes 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of :

 Short - term investments

 Properties

 Long - term stock investments

 Bonds

 Increase in short - term investments

 $   5,837,149

2,636,825

   234,386

   10,300

   24,100

   459,191

   184,731

 ( 2,114,378 )

 ( 107,426 )

   12,141

   255,046

   416,211

   -

 ( 10,490 )

   954,220

   4,849

 ( 122 )

 ( 10,110 )

 ( 918,702 )

 ( 527,310 )

 ( 39,086 )

   -

   431,684

   300,361

   291,000

   48,129

 ( 69,917 )

 ( 318,671 )

   7,984,111

   85,760

   40,341

   100,666

   -

   -

$   7,794,666

   1,956,596

   253,443

   36,000

   11,500

   449,274

   -

 ( 5,616,115 )

 ( 46,072 )

   9,192

 ( 35,471 )

 ( 184,231 )

 ( 3,927 )

   3,969

   -

( 10,721 )

 ( 154 )

   210,832

 ( 1,470,765 )

 ( 335,813 )

   7,472

 ( 214,858 )

   808,268

   125,976

   140,120

   30,782

 ( 109,921 )

   45,898

   3,855,940

   3,823,563

   21,706

   -

   282,306

 ( 3,408,000 )

2000 1999

( In Thousand New Taiwan Dollars )For the Years Ended December 31, 2000 and 1999

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Forward )
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Acquisition of properties

Increase in other assets

Increase in long - term stock investments

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayments of commercial papers payable

Capital inccrease in cash through the issuance of American 

Depositary Receipts

Repayments of long - term debts

Increase in long - term debts

Proceeds from short - term borrowings

Decrease in payable for properties

Compensation to directors and supervisors

Bonus to employees

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 

CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH, END OF YEAR

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Interest paid (excluding capitalized interest )

Income tax paid

Cash paid for acquisition of properties

 Acquisition of properties

 Increase in payable

 Increase in obligation under capital leases

Cash received from sales of properties

 Sale of properties

 Decrease in receivable

Capital increase in cash through issuance of American

 Depositary Receipts

  Total proceeds

  Increase in accrued expense

( $   5,571,373 )

 (391,304 )

 ( 3,882,199 )

 ( 9,618,109 )

   2,244,985

   

4,151,300

 ( 1,249,939 )

   427,285

   671,936

 ( 255,077 )

 ( 139,200 )

 ( 12,669 )

   5,838,621

   318,671

   4,523,294

   2,270,298

  $    6,793,592

  $       577,981

   276,164

  $     7,879,157

   -

 ( 2,307,784 )

  $     5,571,373

  

$         67,827

 ( 27,486 )

  $         40,341

  $     4,137,910

   13,390

  $     4,151,300

( $  2,943,689 )

 ( 162,580 )

 ( 7,696,930 )

 ( 10,083,624 )

   -

   

-

 ( 1,524,931 )

   5,103,434

   702,626

   -

 ( 28,800 )

   -

   4,252,329

 ( 45,898 )

 ( 2,021,253 )

   4,291,551

  $    2,270,298

  $      233,426

   139,548

  $   4,028,370

 ( 511,699 )

 ( 572,982 )

   $    2,943,689

  

$        21,319

   387

  $       21,706

  $               -

   -

  $               -

2000 1999

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc.  and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000

Together with Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders

Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc., a corporation 

incorporated under the laws of the Republic of China, and its consolidated subsidiaries ( the “Corporation” ) 

as of December 31, 1999 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and 

cash flows for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, all expressed in New Taiwan dollars.  These financial 

statements are the responsibility of the Corporation’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China and the United 

States of America.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 

the financial statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 

the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe 

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 

position of the Corporation as of December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the 

years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the Republic 

of China.

Certain accounting practices of the Corporation used in preparing the accompanying financial statements conform with 

generally accepted accounting principles in the Republic of China, but do not conform with generally accepted accounting 

principles in the United States of America ( “US GAAP” ).  A description of the differences and the adjustments required to 

conform the financial statements to US GAAP are set forth in Note 27.

March 27, 2001

T N Soong & Co

A Member Firm of Andersen Worldwide, SC

Taipei, Taiwan

Republic of China



CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2 )

Short-term investments (Notes2 and 3)

Notes receivable

Accounts receivable - net (Notes 4 )

Inventories (Notes 2 and 5)

Deferred income tax assets - net (Notes 2 and 17)

Prepayments and other (Note 21)

Total Current Assets

LONG - TERM INVESTMENTS 

Shares of stock (Notes 2, 6, 10 and 21)

Bonds (Notes 2 and 7)

Total Long - Term Investments

PROPERTIES (Notes 2, 8,13 and 21)

Cost

 Land and land improvements

 Buildings and improvements

 Machinery and equipment

 Transportation equipment

 Furniture and fixtures

 Leased assets and leasehold improvements

 Long leasehold land

 Total cost

Accumulated depreciation

Construction in progress

Machinery in transit and prepayments

Net Properties

OTHER ASSETS (Notes 2, 9 and 21)

CONSOLIDATED DEBITS (Notes 2 and 10 )

TOTAL ASSETS

   11,809,112

   216,280

   201,042

   7,262,415

   2,449,691

   492,533

   919,219

   23,350,292

   9,184,681

   489,751

   9,674,432

   4,167,529

   7,304,856

   36,187,779

   115,136

   653,710

   363,701

   56,275

   48,848,986

 ( 14,961,384 )

   33,887,602

   894,935

   3,324,929

   38,107,466

   952,757

   5,245,828

77,330,775

  14,166,495

   1,682,679

   219,641

   9,040,934

   3,246,327

   1,160,727

   1,270,859

   30,787,662

   10,485,459

   226,740

   10,712,199

   3,798,835

   9,390,206

   59,631,388

   101,409

   1,458,138

   486,275

   1,389

   74,867,640

 ( 22,690,292 )

   52,177,348

   3,438,426

   4,950,426

   60,566,200

   1,275,557

   4,999,546

108,341,164

  427,088

   50,729

   6,622

   272,563

   97,869

   34,993

   38,314

   928,178

   316,113

   6,835

   322,948

   114,526

   283,093

   1,797,751

   3,057

   43,960

   14,660

   42

   2,257,089

 ( 684,061 )

   1,573,028

   103,661

   149,244

   1,825,933

   38,455

   150,725

3,266,239

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
20001999

NT$ NT$ US$

( In Thousands )December 31, 2000 and 1999

(Forward )
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CURRENT LIABILITIES

Short-term borrowings (Notes 11 and 21)

Commercial papers and bank acceptances payable (Note 12)

Accounts payable

Payable for fixed assets (Note 8 )

Income tax payable

Current portion of long - term debts (Notes 14 and 21)

Current portion of long - term payable for investments (Note 26)

Accrued expenses (Note 19)

Other

Total Current Liabilities

LONG - TERM BONDS PAYABLE (Note 13)

LONG - TERM DEBTS (Notes 14 and 21)

LONG - TERM PAYABLE FOR INVESTMENTS (Note 26)

ACCRUED PENSION COST (Notes 2 and 18)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES - NET (Notes 2 and 17)

Total Liabilities

MINORITY INTEREST IN CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Note 15)

Capital stock - NT$10 par value

 Authorized - 2,400,000 thousand shares in 1999 and 

   3,200,000 thousand shares in 2000

 Issued - 1,980,000 thousand shares in 1999 and 2,752,000 

   thousand shares in 2000

Capital surplus

 Capital in excess of par value

 Net gain on disposal of properties

 Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due to change in

 percentage of ownership

 Total capital surplus

Retained earnings

Unrealized loss on long - term investment in shares of stock

Cumulative translation adjustments

Total Shareholders’ Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

  3,787,647

   1,703,593

   3,152,353

   2,779,513

   458,425

   2,886,351

   1,490,599

   921,907

   455,815

   17,636,203

   10,827,663

   9,739,639

   3,984,181

   189,189

   6,590

   42,383,465

   4,890,274

   19,800,000

   1,921

   11,879

   669,874

   683,674

   9,243,346

   -

   330,016

   30,057,036

   77,330,775

  5,402,597

   4,281,805

   3,859,909

   4,179,324

   1,100,964

   3,309,935

   773,616

   1,613,207

   1,352,002

   25,873,359

   12,229,179

   10,329,851

   3,417,912

   248,425

   511,462

   52,610,188

   12,061,762

   27,520,000

   3,171,933

   23,109

   4,075,783

   7,270,825

   8,200,947

 (  546,829 )

   1,224,271

   43,669,214

   108,341,164

  162,876

   129,087

   116,368

   125,997

   33,192

   99,787

   23,323

   48,635

   40,759

   780,024

   368,682

   311,421

   103,042

   7,489

   15,419

   1,586,077

   363,635

   829,665

   95,627

   697

   122,875

   219,199

   247,240

 (  16,486 )

   36,909

   1,316,527

   3,266,239

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

37

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

20001999

NT$ NT$ US$

( In Thousands )December 31, 2000 and 1999
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NET REVENUES (Note 25)

Packaging

Testing

Other

Subtotal

COST OF REVENUES

Packaging

Testing

Other

Subtotal

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling

General and administrative (Note 10 )

Research and development

Total Operating Expenses

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS

NON - OPERATING INCOME

Interest (Notes 2 and 23)

Gain on sales of investments (Notes 2 and 16)

Investment income under equity method (Notes 2 and 6)

Foreign exchange gain - net (Notes 2 and 23)

Other

Total Non - Operating Income

NON - OPERATING EXPENSES

Interest (Notes 2 and 8)

Investment loss under equity method (Notes 2 and 6)

Foreign exchange loss - net (Notes 2 and 23)

Other

Total Non - Operating Expenses

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX AND MINORITY

INTEREST AND ACQUISITION

16,867,404

   3,131,278

   763,741

   20,762,423

   13,173,587

   1,646,706

   647,840

   15,468,133

   5,294,290

   744,742

   1,255,081

   453,611

   2,453,434

   2,840,856

   605,397

   606,944

   29,149

   -

   146,516

    1,388,006

   985,796

   129,698

   935,474

   196,613

   2,247,581

1,981,281

  24,522,968

   7,793,198

   293,395

   32,609,561

   18,769,995

   4,687,939

   501,632

   23,959,566

   8,649,995

   924,347

   2,162,765

   714,324

   3,801,436

   4,848,559

   423,158

   5,544,155

   81,466

   -

   314,549

   6,363,328

   1,469,795

   30,871

   538,368

   110,412

   2,149,446

9,062,441

  38,028,799

   12,768,361

   96,217

   50,893,377

   28,011,934

   7,473,964

   81,380

   35,567,278

   15,326,099

   1,020,451

   3,166,006

   1,262,516

   5,448,973

   9,877,126

   554,180

   91,666

   69,915

   302,745

   198,518

   1,217,024

   2,092,238

   237,152

   -

   361,200

   2,690,590

8,403,560

 

  1,146,482

   384,937

   2,901

   1,534,320

   844,496

   225,323

   2,454

   1,072,273

   462,047

   30,764

   95,448

   38,062

   164,274

   297,773

   16,707

   2,763

   2,108

   9,127

   5,985

   36,690

   63,076

   7,150

   -

   10,889

   81,115

253,348

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

( In Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share and Equivalent ADS )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the Years Ended December 31,1998, 1999, and 2000

(Forward )
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INCOME TAX BENEFIT (EXPENSE) (Notes 2 and 17)

INCOME BEFORE MINORITY INTEREST AND 

ACQUISITION

INCOME BEFORE ACQUISITION (Note 2 )

MINORITY INTEREST IN NET INCOME OF 

SUBSIDIARIES

NET INCOME

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Notes 2 and 20)

Based on weighted average number of outstanding

shares of 2,677,602,508 in 2000 and 1,980,000,000 

in 1999 and 1,780,000,000 in 1998 

Primary

Fully diluted

Based on weighted average number of outstanding

shares after giving retroactive adjustment to 1999 and

2000 stock dividends

 Primary

 Fully diluted

EARNINGS PER EQUIVALENT ADS ( Note 2 and 20 )

Based on weighted average number of outstanding

shares of 2,677,602,508 in 2000 and 1,980,000,000 

in 1999 and 1,780,000,000 in 1998 

Primary

Fully diluted

Based on weighted average number of outstanding

shares after giving retroactive adjustment to 1999 and

2000 stock dividends

Primary

Fully diluted

   150,777

2,132,058

  -

 

(  528,097 )

   1,603,961

 

  0.85

   0.85

   

0.57

   0.57

   

4.27

   4.27

   

2.87

   2.87

   459,543

8,602,898

(  65,167 )

(  743,065 )

   7,794,666

  

 3.90

   3.90

   

2.91

   2.90

   

19.51

   19.49

   

14.53

   14.51

    ( 1,065,768 )

7,337,792

 -

( 1,500,643 )

   5,837,149

   

2.13

   2.13

   

10.65

   10.65

  (  32,130 )

221,218

-

 

(  45,241 )

   175,977

   

0.06

   0.06

  

 0.32

   0.32

For the Years Ended December 31,1998, 1999, and 2000

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

( In Thousands, Except Earnings Per Share and Equivalent ADS )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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BALANCE, JANUARY 1, 1998

Increase in authorized capital, March 21, 1999

Appropriations of 1997 earnings ( Note 15)

Legal reserve

Compensation to directors and supervisors

Stock dividends – 60 %

Bonus to employees – stock

Bonus to employees – cash

Stock dividends from capital surplus – 2.9%

Transfer of subsidiary’s gain on disposal of properties

Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due to change in 

percentage of ownership

Net income in 1998

Transfer of net gain on disposal of properties

Unrealized loss on long-term investment in shares of stock

Cumulative translation adjustments ( Note 2 )

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998

Increase in authorized capital, June 9, 1999

Appropriations of 1998 earnings (Note 15)

 Legal reserve

 Compensation to directors and supervisors

 Stock dividends – 7.8%

 Bonus to employees – stock

 Bonus to employees – cash

Stock dividends from capital surplus– 2.9%

Transfer of subsidiary’s net gain on disposal of properties

Transfer of net gain on disposal of properties

Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due to change in 

percentage of ownership

Net income in 1999

Reversal of unrealized loss on long-term investment in shares of stock

Cumulative translation adjustments ( Note 2 )

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999

 1,400,000,000

  800,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

 

 -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  2,200,000,000

  200,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  

-

  -

  -

  -

  2,400,000,000

 1,017,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  610,200,000

  30,760,000

  -

  122,040,000

  -

 

 -

  -

  -

  -

  -

  1,780,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  138,840,000

  9,540,000

  -

  51,620,000

  -

  -

  

-

  -

  -

  -

  1,980,000,000

 NT$ 10,170,000

   -

   -

   -

   6,102,000

   307,600

   -

   1,220,400

   -

  

 -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   17,800,000

   -

   -

   -

   1,388,400

   95,400

   -

   516,200

   -

   -

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   19,800,000

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN 
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Issued and Outstanding

CAPITAL STOCK (NT$10 Par Value)

Authorized
Shares  Shares Amount

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000
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 NT$ 2,352,354

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

 ( 1,220,400 )

   204

   

55,605

   -

   1,410

   -

   -

   1,189,173

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

 ( 516,200 )

   4,931

   736

   

5,034

   -

   -

   -

   683,674

 NT$  649,411

   -

   740,118

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

  

 -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   1,389,529

   -

   160,255

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   1,549,784

 NT$  7,455,769

   -

 ( 740,118 )

 ( 120,000 )

 ( 6,102,000 )

 ( 307,600 )

 (  92,400 )

   -

 (  204 )

  

 -

   1,603,961

 ( 1,410 )

   -

   -

   1,695,998

   -

 ( 160,255 )

 ( 28,800 )

 ( 1,388,400 )

 ( 95,400 )

 ( 5,500 )

  -

 ( 4,931 )

 ( 736 )

 ( 113,080 )

   7,794,666

   -

   -

   7,693,562

 NT$ 8,105,180

   -

   -

 ( 120,000 )

 ( 6,102,000 )

 ( 307,600 )

 ( 92,400 )

   -

 (  204 )

   

-

   1,603,961

 ( 1,410 )

   -

   -

   3,085,527

   -

   -

 ( 28,800 )

 ( 1,388,400 )

 ( 95,400 )

 ( 5,500 )

   -

 ( 4,931 )

 ( 736 )

 

( 113,080 )

   7,794,666

   -

   -

   9,243,346

 NT$            -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   -

   -

 ( 703,865 )

   -

 (  703,865 )

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   -

   703,865

   -

   -

 NT$    406,119

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   97,854

   503,973

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   -

   -

 ( 173,957 )

   330,016

 NT$ 21,033,653

   -

   -

 ( 120,000 )

   -

   -

 ( 92,400 )

   -

   -

   

55,605

   1,603,961

   -

 ( 703,865 )

   97,854

   21,874,808

   -

   -

 ( 28,800 )

   -

   -

 ( 5,500 )

   -

   -

   -

 

( 108,046 )

   7,794,666

   703,865

 ( 173,957 )

   30,057,036

( In Thousands, Except Share Data )

CAPITAL
SURPLUS
(Note 2 ) 

RETAINED EARNINGS

Legal
Reserve

Unappropriated
Earnings

UNREALIZED
LOSS ON

LONG-TERM
INVESTMENT
IN SHARES
OF STOCK
(Note 2 ) 

CUMULATIVE
TRANSLATION
ADJUSTMENTS

(Note 2 ) 

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDERS’

EQUITY
Total

( Forward )

43



Convertible bonds converted into common shares 

Increase in authorized capital, July 11, 2000

Appropriations of 1999 earnings ( Note 15)

 Legal reserve

 Compensation to directors and supervisors

 Bonus to employees – cash

 Bonus to employees – stock 

 Stock dividends – 31.5%

Capital increase in cash through the issuance of American

Depositary Receipts – September 29

Transfer of subsidiary’s net gain on disposal of properties

Adjustment of equity in subsidiary due to change in 

percentage of ownership

Unrealized loss on long - term investment in shares of stock

Net income in 2000

Transfer of net gain on disposal of properties

Cumulative translation adjustment ( Note 2 )

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000

-

  800,000,000

  -

  -

  -

  -

  -

 

 -

  -

 

 -

 -

  -

  -

  -

  3,200,000,000

355,086

  -

  -

  -

  -

  47,833,062

  623,811,852

  

100,000,000

  -

  

-

 -

  -

  -

  -

  2,752,000,000

NT$         3,551

   -

   -

   -

   -

   478,331

   6,238,118

   

1,000,000

   -

  

 -

  -

   -

   -

   -

  NT$ 27,520,000

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Issued and Outstanding

CAPITAL STOCK ( NT$10 Par Value )

Authorized
Shares  Shares Amount

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000

(continue )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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( In Thousands, Except Share Data )

CAPITAL
SURPLUS
( Note 2 ) 

RETAINED EARNINGS

Legal
Reserve

Unappropriated
Earnings

UNREALIZED
LOSS ON

LONG-TERM
INVESTMENT
IN SHARES
OF STOCK
(Note 2 ) 

CUMULATIVE
TRANSLATION
ADJUSTMENTS

(Note 2 ) 

TOTAL
SHAREHOLDERS’

EQUITY
Total

 NT$      32,102

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

3,137,910

   9,470

   

3,405,909

   -

   -

   1,760

   -

  NT$ 7,270,825

 NT$             -

   -

   779,393

   -

   -

   -

   -

  

 -

   -

  

 -

   -

   -

   -

   -

  NT$ 2,329,177

 NT$             -

   -

 ( 779,393 )

 ( 139,200 )

 ( 12,669 )

 ( 478,331 )

 ( 6,238,118 )

   

-

 ( 9,470 )

   

-

   -

   5,837,149

 ( 1,760 )

   -

  NT$ 5,871,770

 NT$             -

   -

   -

 ( 139,200 )

 ( 12,669 )

 ( 478,331 )

 ( 6,238,118 )

   

-

 ( 9,470 )

   

-

   -

   5,837,149

 ( 1,760 )

   -

  NT$ 8,200,947

 NT$             -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   -

  

 -

 ( 546,829 )

   -

   -

   -

 ( NT$ 546,829 )

 NT$             -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

-

   -

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   894,255

  NT$ 1,224,271

 NT$      35,653

   -

   -

 ( 139,200 )

 ( 12,669 )

   -

   -

   

4,137,910

   -

   

3,405,909

 ( 546,829 )

   5,837,149

   -

   894,255

  NT$ 43,669,214
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided  

by operating activities:

Minority interest in net income of subsidiaries

Depreciation

Amortization

Exchange ( gain ) loss on long-term foreign:

Bonds payable 

Debts

Investment payable

Bonds investment

Accrued interest on convertible bonds

Provision for doubtful accounts and sales allowance

Gain on sale of investments

Investment ( income) loss under equity method

Gain on disposal of properties 

Provision ( reversal of allowance ) for loss on 

short - term investments

Provision for loss on long - term bonds investments

Amortization of consolidated debit

Deferred income taxes

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of 

effects from purchases of Motorola SPS Businesses  

and ISE Labs, Inc.

Notes receivable

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepayments and other

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Income tax payable

Accrued expenses and other 

Accrued pension cost

Effect of exchange rate changes

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

  1,603,961

   

528,097

   2,960,604

   276,585

 ( 91,392 )

 ( 63,913 )

   -

   8,285

   437,768

   44,789

 ( 606,944 )

   100,549

 ( 546 )

 

( 10,779 )

   -

   345,726

 ( 267,511 )

   

333,717

   79,131

   314,207

 ( 86,985 )

 ( 136,030 )

   318,435

 ( 136,221 )

 ( 745,419 )

   66,941

 ( 78,905 )

   5,194,150

  7,794,666

   

743,065

   5,128,282

   426,085

 ( 191,895 )

 ( 3,927 )

   -

   11,066 

   615,805

   109,263

 ( 5,544,155 )

 ( 50,595 )

 ( 20,903 )

 ( 10,721 )

   -

   507,816

 ( 343,180 )

   

189,530 

 ( 2,722,498 )

 ( 444,885 )

 ( 284,376 )

 ( 214,858 )

   869,713

   238,982

   598,025

 ( 551,421 )

   168,350

   7,017,234

  5,837,149

   

1,500,643

   8,127,561

   466,238

   628,058 

   -

   170,351

 ( 21,290 )

   837,846

   155,458

 ( 91,666 )

   167,237

   19,298 

   

4,849

   284,301

   559,807

 ( 226,898 )

 

( 18,599 )

 ( 1,933,977 )

 ( 796,636 )

 ( 327,757 )

   -

   707,556

   642,539

   1,574,097

   59,236

 ( 682,197 )

   17,643,204

  175,977

   

45,241

   245,027

   14,056

   18,935 

   -

   5,136

 ( 642 )

   25,259

   4,687

 ( 2,763 )

   5,042

   582 

   

146

   8,571

   16,877

 ( 6,840 )

 

( 561 )

 ( 58,305 )

 ( 24,017 )

 ( 9,881 )

   -

   21,331

   19,371 

   47,455

   1,786

 ( 20,567 )

   531,903

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 ( In Thousands )

( Forward )

46



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Motorola SPS Businesses

Acquisition of ISE Labs, Inc.

Acquisition of fixed assets

( Increase ) decrease in short - term investments

Payments for long - term investments :

Shares of stock

Bonds

Increase in other assets

Proceeds from sales of :

Properties

Shares of stock:

ASE Inc.

ASE Test Ltd.

Bonds

Others

Purchase of ASE Test Ltd. shares

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from ( repayments of ) :

Capital increase through the issuance of American

Depositary Shares

Issuance of foreign convertible bonds

Long - term debts

Investment payable

Commercial papers and bank acceptances payable

Proceeds from ( repayments of ) short - term borrowings

Repayments for long - term foreign bonds interest

Decrease in deferred intercompany profit

Increase ( decrease ) in minority interest

Compensation to directors and supervisors and bonus

to employees

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

  -

   -

 ( 6,944,980 )

   3,530,471

 ( 2,598,519 )

 ( 190,039 )

 ( 462,699 )

   493,898

   75,672

   214,865

  -

   -

( 2,676,952 )

 ( 8,558,283 )

-

   -

   828,345

   -

   807,665

 ( 692,274 )

   - 

 ( 22,008 )

 ( 119,994 )

 

( 212,400 )

   589,334

   

  ( 4,259,541 )

 ( 3,014,427 )

 ( 9,869,161 )

   569,099

 ( 3,538,728 )

   - 

 ( 202,668 )

   361,149

   3,170,957

   4,718,324

282,306

   -

 -

 ( 11,782,690 )

-

   3,460,050

   4,201,517

   -

 ( 517,031 )

   1,218,200

   - 

   -

   235,081

 

( 28,800 )

   8,569,017

 

    -

   -

 ( 30,063,640 )

 ( 1,471,248 )

 ( 2,026,047 )

   - 

 ( 787,246 )

   697,126

   -

   -

-

   100,666

- 

 ( 33,550,389 )

4,151,300

   -

   1,013,796

 ( 1,453,603 )

   2,578,212

   1,614,950

 ( 24,915 )

   - 

   9,854,500

 

( 151,869 )

   17,582,371

   

     -

   -

 ( 906,350 )

 ( 44,355 )

 ( 61,081 )

   -

 ( 23,734 )

   21,017

   -

   -

 -

   3,035

- 

 ( 1,011,468 )

125,152

   -

   30,563

 ( 43,823 )

   77,727

   48,687

 ( 751 )

   - 

   297,091

 

( 4,578 )

   530,068

   

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 ( In Thousands )

( Forward )

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(continue )
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EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES

NET INCREASE ( DECREASE ) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Interest paid ( excluding capitalized interest )

Income tax paid

Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets

Acquisition of fixed assets

Increase in payable

Total assets acquired from acquisition of 

Motorola SPS businesses

Less:  Liabilities assumed

Payable amounts

Less:  Payable balance at end of year

Cash paid

Less:  Cash received at the date of acquisition

Net cash outflow

Total assets acquired from acquisition of ISE Labs, Inc.

Less:  Liabilities assumed

Cash paid

Less:  Cash received at the date of acquisition

Net cash outflow

Cash received from capital increase through the issuance of 

American Depositary Shares

Net proceeds

Increase in payable

Net cash inflow

78,905

 

( 2,695,894 )

   10,869,795

   8,173,901

542,590

   293,901

   7,447,692

 ( 502,712 )

   

6,944,980

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

-

   -

   -

   ( 168,350 )

   

3,635,211

   8,173,901

   11,809,112

787,106

   397,065

   11,097,395

 ( 1,228,234 )

  

 9,869,161

   

12,783,224

   1,627,383

   11,155,841

   5,474,780

   5,681,061

   1,421,520

   4,259,541

   4,671,849

   1,371,453 

   3,300,396

   285,969

   3,014,427

   

-

   -

   -

 682,197 

   

2,357,383 

   11,809,112

   14,166,495

1,217,052

   497,882

   31,463,451

 ( 1,399,811 )

   

30,063,640

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   - 

   -

   -

   -

   

4,137,910

   13,390

   4,151,300

        20,567 

   

71,070 

   356,018

   427,088

36,691

   15,010

   948,551

 ( 42,201 )

   

906,350

   

-

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   -

   

124,748

   404

   125,152

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

For the Years Ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 ( In Thousands )

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(continue )
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 1999 and 2000  ( Amounts in Thousand New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Stated )

1. GENERAL

Advanced Semiconductor Engineering, Inc. ( “ASE” ), a corporation incorporated under the laws of the Republic of China 

( the “ROC” ), is an independent provider of semiconductor packaging and testing services.  ASE’s common shares are 

traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange and in September 2000, ASE’s common shares in the form of American Depositary 

Shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange.  ASE and its consolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are referred to as 

the “ASE Group” .

ASE has five wholly- owned subsidiaries:

a ) ASE Holding Limited ( incorporated in Bermuda in 1990 ) holds shares in ASE Group companies; 

b ) ASE Marketing Services Ltd. ( incorporated in Hong Kong in 1991) engages in trading; 

c ) ASE Investment Co. ( incorporated in the ROC in March 1996 ) holds shares in ASE Group companies; 

d ) J&R Holding Limited ( incorporated in Bermuda in May 1996 ) holds shares in ASE Group companies; and 

e ) ASE Capital Co. ( incorporated in Taiwan in November 1997 ) holds shares in ASE Group companies.  As of December 31, 

2000, ASE also has a 98% equity stake in ASE Technologies, Inc., a company incorporated in the ROC engaged in the 

research and development, manufacture and sales of computers and related accessories, and a 44% equity stake in ASE 

Material Inc. ( “ASE Material ” ), a company incorporated in the ROC engaged in manufacturing and processing of 

leadframes for semiconductors.  In addition, ASE Test, Inc. has a 7% equity stake in ASE Material.

In 1999, ASE ( Chung-Li ) Inc. ( “ASE Chung-Li” ) and ASE Investment ( Labuan ) Inc., a holding company, were incorporated to 

acquire a 100 % interest in the Motorola Semiconductor Product Sector Businesses ( “Motorola SPS Businesses” ) in Chung-Li, 

Taiwan and Paju, Korea as of July 4, 1999.  ASE and ASE Test Limited (“ASE Test” ) own 70% and 30% equity stakes in the 

two subsidiaries, respectively.  ASE Investment ( Labuan ) Inc. owns 100 % of the equity of ASE Korea Inc.  The acquisition 

transaction was accounted for as a purchase, and the purchase price was approximately US$350.1 million ( see Note 26 ).

ASE Holding Limited has the following wholly- owned subsidiaries:   

a ) ASEP Realty Corporation ( incorporated in the Philippines in December 1995) is engaged in developing and investing 

in real estate; 

b) ASE Holding Electronics (Philippines ) ( incorporated in the Philippines in December 1995 ) is engaged in the manufacture 

of electronic products, components and semiconductors; and 

c) ASE Holding ( Singapore ) Pte. Ltd. ( incorporated in Singapore in December 1994 ) holds shares in ASE Group companies.  

A portion of the share capital of the Philippine subsidiaries are held by certain individuals due to legal limitations; share 

transfer agreements have been signed to safeguard such investments.  ASE Holding ( Singapore ) Pte. Ltd. has 100% equity 

in ASE Electronics (M) Sdn, Bhd. ( “ASE Test Malaysia” ) ( incorporated in Malaysia in 1991), which is engaged in the 

manufacture, processing, testing and sales of integrated circuits.  In April 1997, ASE Holding Limited transferred its     in ASE 

Test Malaysia to ASE Test.

J&R Holding Limited has a 43% - owned subsidiary, namely ASE Test ( incorporated in Singapore in May 1996) and holds 

shares in ASE Group companies.  In addition, ASE Holding Limited has a 8% equity stake in ASE Test.  The shares of ASE Test 

have been listed on the NASDAQ National Market in the United States since June 1996.

ASE Test has four majority - owned subsidiaries:  

a) ASE Test, Inc., which is engaged in testing of semiconductors; 

b) ASE Test Malaysia, which is engaged in packaging and testing of semiconductors; 

c) ASE Test Holding, which mainly hold shares in ASE Group companies; and 

d) ASE Test Finance Limited ( incorporated in Mauritius in June 1999) which is engaged in financing activities.
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ASE Test, Inc. has a wholly- owned subsidiary, ASE Test (USA) Inc., which is engaged in the after- sale service of tested 

semiconductors.

In May 1999, ASE Test acquired 70% of the outstanding shares of ISE Labs, Inc. ( “ISE Labs” ), which is engaged in front - end 

engineering testing, final testing and packaging of semiconductors.  The purchase cost, including transaction costs, was 

approximately US$100.1 million (NT$3,320.3 million).  ASE Test has committed to the minority shareholders of ISE Labs 

that if ISE Labs ( i ) does not consummate its initial public offering in the United States by December 31, 2001 at or above a 

predetermined price or ( ii ) disposes of certain material assets, ASE Test will be obligated to purchase the remaining 30% of 

equity of ISE Labs for US$42 million (NT$1,393.1 million) plus accrued interest (payable either in cash or shares at the 

option of the minority shareholders ) ( see Note 26).  Any future acquisition of the remaining 30 % equity of ISE Labs will be 

accounted for as step- acquisitions using the purchase method.  In June 1999, ASE Test Finance Limited issued US$160 

million (NT$5,307.2 million) of convertible notes to finance the acquisitions of ISE Labs and Motorola SPS Businesses by 

ASE Test ( see Note 13).

ASE Technologies, Inc. has two subsidiaries:  

a) ASE Technologies ( U.S.A. ), Inc. (100 % ownership ), which is mainly engaged in research and development, manufacture and 

sales of computers and related accessories; and 

b) Transmonde Technologies, Inc. ( 68% ownership ), which is mainly engaged in sales of computers and related accessories.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the 

ROC ( “ROC GAAP” ). Significant accounting polices are summarized as follows:

Presentation of financial statements

ASE prepared its financial statements using ROC GAAP and made reconciliation to US GAAP (Note 27) and the 

accompanying balance sheets are presented for two year- ends as at December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the accompanying 

statements of income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows are presented for three years ended December 31, 

1998, 1999 and 2000. 

Unless otherwise stated, amounts presented are in thousands of New Taiwan dollars (NT$ ) or US dollars (US$ ).

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of ASE and all of the aforementioned companies ( hereinafter, 

individually or collectively referred to as “the Corporation" ).

The consolidated method used by the Corporation to consolidate the statement of income of ISE Labs for the year ended 

December 31, 1999, ISE Labs’ full year 1999 net revenues, cost of revenues and operating expenses are included in the 

Corporation’s consolidated statements of income.  The pre-acquisition income of ISE Labs for the period 

( from January 1, 1999 to May 4, 1999) is then subtracted from the Corporation’s net income for 1999. 

The statements of income for both ASE Chung-Li Inc. and ASE Korea Inc. ( representing the acquirees from acquisitions of 

Motorola SPS Businesses ) are consolidated since the date of acquisitions due to the change of business type after acquisition 

in ASE Chung Li and ASE Korea for the accounting of silicon wafers from previous purchase and sale transaction to customers’ 

consignments ( see accounting policy for inventories ). 
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The accounts of ASE Material for 1999 are consolidated because ASE in effect controls ASE Material as follows:  

First, two of the five board members of ASE Material are appointed by ASE and one board member is appointed by ASE Test, 

Inc., a consolidated subsidiary of ASE.  Second, Mr. Jason Chang, the Chairman of ASE, also serves as the Chairman of ASE 

Material.  Third, ASE appoints ASE Material’s sole Supervisor, whose duty under the ROC Company Law is to monitor 

ASE Material’s business and financial condition.  Finally, Mr. Jason Chang has committed to vote his shares of ASE Material 

as of December 31, 1999, which represented a 11.4% ownership interest in ASE Material, in concert with ASE.

All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated and minority shareholders' interests in the equity and 

earnings of the subsidiaries are presented separately in the financial statements.  The differences between the costs of 

investments and the proportionate equity in each subsidiary when the stocks were acquired are recorded as consolidated 

credits (debits ) and are amortized on the straight - line method over ten years.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements both in conformity with ROC GAAP and the generally accepted accounting principles in 

the United States ( “US GAAP” ) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts 

and disclosures.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Corporation considers all highly liquid investments within an original maturity from date of purchase of three months or 

less to be cash equivalents.  As of December 31, 1999 and 2000, cash equivalents were investments in money market funds 

stated at cost, which approximated fair value.

Short- term investments

Marketable securities are carried at cost less allowance for decline in market value.

Allowances for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on evaluation of the collectibility of receivables.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of weighted average cost or market value.  Unbilled processing charges incurred ( included in 

finished goods and work in process ) are stated at actual cost.  Market value represents net realizable value for finished goods 

and work in process, and replacement costs for raw materials, supplies and spare parts.

Materials received from customers for processing, mainly silicon wafers, are excluded from inventories.

51



Long-term investments in shares of stock

Long-term investments of which ASE owns at least 20% of the outstanding voting shares and where ASE exercises significant 

influence on the investee companies' operations are accounted for by the equity method.  Under the equity method, 

the investments are initially carried at cost and subsequently adjusted for ASE’s proportionate share in the net earnings or 

losses of the investee companies.  Such proportionate share in the earnings or losses are recognized as investment income 

or losses while any cash dividends received are reflected as a reduction in the carrying value of the investments.  The goodwill 

representing the excess of the investment costs over ASE's proportionate equity in the net assets of the investees at the time 

of investments or at the time the equity method of accounting is first applied to a particular investment, is amortized on the 

straight-line method over ten years.  Changes in ASE’s ownership percentage of investees accounted for by equity method are 

accounted for as adjustments of long-term investments and capital surplus.  The writedown of carrying value of long-term 

investments has been taken on the basis of the discounted cash flows expected to be realized in the future.

Other long-term investments ( including ASE common shares ) in shares of stock are carried at cost.  An allowance for decline 

in value is made for any permanent impairment in the carrying value of the investments and such decline in value is charged 

to current income.  Cash dividends received are recognized as income.  The sales of ASE stocks are reflected as gain from sales 

of long-term investment in the statement of income.

Unrealized profits or losses arising from transactions with equity investees or between equity investees are offset against 

investment income or loss from long-term investments, based on the percentage of ownership.

Long-term investments in bonds

Bond securities being held to maturity are stated at amortized cost.  Allowance for loss in bond securities is provided based on 

the evaluation of recoverability of the carrying value of these securities.

Properties

Properties, except leased equipment, machinery in transit, construction in progress and prepayments, are stated at cost.  

Equipment held under capital leases and related obligations are stated at the lower of the fair value of the equipment at the 

beginning of the lease period or the present value of the total rental payments and the purchase price at the end of the leas 

period.  Machinery in transit, construction in progress and prepayments under construction are stated at cost.  These include 

cost of machinery, construction, down payments and other direct cost plus interest charges attributable to the borrowings 

used to finance these assets. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized, while maintenance and repairs are expensed 

currently.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over estimated service lives which range as follows: long leasehold land, 

60 years ( lease period ); buildings and improvements, 3 to 40 years; machinery and equipment, 3 to 8 years; furniture and 

fixtures, 5 to 10 years; transportation equipment, 3 to 10 years, and leased assets and leasehold improvements, 3 to 10 years.  

In the event that an asset depreciated to its residual value is deemed to have a continual useful life to the company, the 

residual value is depreciated over the remaining life, not to exceed 2 years.

When properties are retired or disposed of, their costs and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any 

loss is charged to income; any gain is credited to income and, after deducting applicable income tax, is transferred to capital 

surplus.

52



Deferred charges

Deferred charges are amortized on the straight-line method as follows:  tooling, 2 years; issuance costs of convertible bonds, 

5 years; telecommunications, electrical and computer network systems, 5 years; and others, 2 to 5 years.

Consolidated debits

The consolidated debits as shown in the balance sheet representing goodwill arising from the excess of the acquisition costs 

of investments over ASE’s proportionate equity in the net assets of the consolidated subsidiaries at the time of acquisitions 

or investments, are amortized on the straight line method over 10 years.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of semiconductor and computer products and testing services is recognized upon shipment 

of the products or completion of the services, with a provision for estimated returns and allowances recorded at the time 

of recognition of revenue. 

Income tax

Tax effects of deductible temporary differences and unused tax credits are recognized as deferred income tax assets, while 

those taxable temporary differences are recognized as deferred income tax liabilities.  Valuation allowance is provided for 

deferred income tax assets based on the estimated realizability.

Adjustments of prior years' income tax are added to or deducted from the current year's tax provision.

Income taxes on undistributed earnings (10 % ) generated in 1998 and onwards for consolidated entities in the ROC 

are recorded as expense in the following year when the shareholders have resolved that the earnings shall be retained.

Pension cost

Pension cost is recorded based on actuarial calculations.

Convertible bonds

Conversion of convertible bonds into common shares is accounted for by book value method.  Under this method, 

unamortized bond issuance cost, accrued interest no longer payable and the carrying value of the bond are written off.  

In addition, common shares are recorded at par value of the shares issued and the excess is recorded as capital surplus.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign-currency financial statements

ASE and its subsidiaries maintain their accounts in the currency of their respective countries of incorporation ( local currencies ) 

and functional currencies.
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Foreign currency transactions, other than foreign currency forward exchange contracts, are recorded in the local currencies 

at the rates of exchange in effect when the transactions occur.  Gains or losses resulting from the application of different 

foreign exchange rates when foreign- currency assets and liabilities are settled, are credited or charged to income in the year 

of settlement.  Year- end balances of foreign currency assets and liabilities are restated based on prevailing exchange rates 

and the resulting differences are credited or charged to income.

The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into New Taiwan dollars at the following rates:  

Assets and liabilities, current rate; and income and expenses, average exchange rate during the year.  The net resulting 

translation adjustment is reported as a separate component of shareholders' equity.

Derivative financial instruments

Premiums or discounts on foreign currency forward exchange contracts which hedge foreign currency assets or liabilities 

arising from the difference between the forward rate and the spot rate at the date of each contract are deferred and amortized 

over the contract period.  At year end, the balances of the forward exchange receivables or payables are restated based on 

prevailing exchange rates and the resulting gain or loss is credited or charged to income.  Any exchange gain or loss when the 

contract is settled is also credited or charged to income.  The difference between receivable and payable balances arising from 

forward exchange contracts is accounted for as either current asset or current liability.

Written option contracts to purchase foreign currencies and currency and interest rate swap contracts entered into for hedging 

purposes are not recorded as assets or liabilities on the contract dates.  Gains or losses upon settlement are credited or charged 

to income.  Amounts received or paid are amortized over each contract period.  The outstanding written option contracts, and 

currency and interest rate swap contracts are marked to market with charges to income.

Interest rate swap agreements to limit the impact of the variable interest rate of certain long-term debts are not recorded as 

assets or liabilities on the contract date.  The variable rates on swaps are based primarily on US dollar LIBOR.  The differential 

between fixed and variable rates to be paid or received on swaps is accrued as interest rates change in accordance with the 

agreements and is included in current interest expense.

Earnings per share ( “EPS” ) and earnings per equivalent ADS

Common shares of ASE’s convertible bonds are not considered in the calculation of primary and fully diluted EPS because 

they have anti - dilutive effect.  Common share equivalents of the employees’ stock options of ASE Test are included in the 

EPS calculation ( see Note 20 ).

Earnings per equivalent American depositary share (ADS) are calculated by multiplying earnings per share by five (each of the 

ADS represents five common shares ).

US dollar amount

ASE prepares its consolidated financial statements in New Taiwan dollars.  Translations into US dollars for 2000 financial 

statements are included solely for the convenience of the readers, and are based on the US Federal Reserve Bank of New York 

noon buying rate of NT$33.17 to US$1.00 in effect as at December 31, 2000.  The convenience translations should not be 

construed as representations that the New Taiwan dollar amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be, 

converted into U.S. dollars at this or any other rates.
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3. SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
December 31 

Mutual funds

Stocks

Convertible bonds and government bonds

Allowance for loss

  186,667

   19,613

   10,000

   216,280

   -

216,280

  1,603,362

   63,978

   20,188

   1,687,528

   4,849

1,682,679

  48,338

   1,929

   608

   50,875

   146

50,729

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - NET

The movement of allowance for doubtful accounts and sales allowances are as follows:

December 31 

Accounts receivable

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for sales allowances

7,496,669

 ( 187,162 )

 (   47,092 )

7,262,415

9,393,853

 (  314,243 )

 (    38,676 )

9,040,934

    283,203

 (  9,474 )

 (  1,166 )

272,563

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

Balance, beginning of 1998

Additions

Deductions

Balance, end of 1998

Additions

Deductions

Balance, end of 1999

Additions

Deductions

Balance, end of 2000

Balance, beginning of 2000

Additions

Deductions

Balance, end of 2000

80,419

   4,289

   -

   84,708

   109,263

 ( 6,809 )

   187,162

   148,834

 ( 21,753 )

   314,243

 

5,643

   4,487

 ( 656 )

   9,474

12,500

   40,500

   -

   53,000

   -

 ( 5,908 )

   47,092

   6,624

 ( 15,040 )

   38,676

 

1,420

   199

 ( 453 )

   1,166

Doubtful
Accounts

NT$ 

Sales
Allowances

NT$ 

US$US$
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5. INVENTORIES
December 31 

Finished goods

Work in process

Raw materials

General supplies and spare parts

Allowance for obsolescence

Supplies in transit

122,193

   349,910

   1,685,424

   379,775

   2,537,302

 ( 176,205 )

   2,361,097

   88,594

2,449,691

    246,812

   337,320

   2,099,058

   630,979

   3,314,169

 ( 155,061 )

   3,159,108

   87,219

3,246,327

    7,441

   10,169

   63,282

   19,023

   99,915

 ( 4,675 )

   95,240

   2,629

97,869

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

Balance, beginning of 1998 203,276

Additions 106,708

Deductions ( 110,966 )

Balance, end of 1998 199,018

Additions 50,566

Deductions ( 73,379 )

Balance, end of 1999 176,205

Additions 115,928

Deductions ( 137,072 )

Balance, end of 2000 155,061

 

Balance, beginning of 2000 5,312

Additions 3,495

Deductions ( 4,132 )

Balance, end of 2000 4,675

 

US$  

NT$  

The movement of allowance for obsolescence is as follows:
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6. LONG- TERM INVESTMENTS – COMMON STOCKS
December 31 

Equity method

Hung Ching Development & Construction Co. 

(HCDC ) (Note 10 )

Hung Ching Kwan Co. (HCKC )

Universal Scientific Industrial Co., Ltd. 

(USI ) ( Note 10 )

Universal Access Technology Inc. (UAT )

Cost method

ASE stock held by subsidiaries

InveStar Burgeon Venture Capital, Inc.

Taiwan Fixed Network Co., Ltd.

Core-Pacific Securities Investment Trust Co.

Preferred stock

Intergrated Programmable Communication, Inc. ( IPC)

Adjustment for evaluation of ASE stock

Unrealized gain on sale of land

  2,405,571

   401,664

   

3,600,626

   -

   2,922,561

   145,408

   -

   9,000

   -

   9,484,830

   -

 ( 300,149 )

   9,184,681

    2,154,627

   405,549

   

3,931,810

   92,775

   2,919,411

   153,035

   1,500,000

   -

   118,681

   11,275,888

 ( 490,280 )

 ( 300,149 )

   10,485,459

      64,957

   12,226

   

118,535

   2,797

   88,014

   4,614

   45,222

   -

   3,578

   339,943

 ( 14,781 )

 ( 9,049 )

   316,113

    25.1

   27.3

   

22.7

   -

   5.2

   13.0

   -

   3.0

   -

      25.4

   27.3

   

21.3

   25.0

   4.9

   13.0

   1.6

   -

   -

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$
% of Direct
Owner-ship 

% of Direct
Owner-ship 

ASE acquired its 27.3% equity interest in Hung Ching Kwan Co. ( “HCKC” ) in 1992 by transferring to HCKC a parcel of land as 

an investment in HCKC at an agreed valuation of NT$390,470.  The resulting gain of NT$300,149, which represents the excess 

of such value over the cost of the land plus land value increment tax, has been deferred until the disposal of this investment.  

As of December 31, 2000, ASE has a 43.4% (1999: 43.2%) effective interest in HCKC, which consists of 27.3% interest directly 

owned by ASE, and 15.9% (1999: 16.1% ) interest indirectly owned through Hung Ching Development & Construction Co. 

( “HCDC” ) ( based on HCDC’s 63.5% interest in HCKC ).

ASE made investments in UAT in December 2000 and directly acquired its 25% equity interest.  In addition, HCDC and USI 

have 10 % and 25% equity interest in UAT.  Accordingly, as of December 31, 2000, ASE has a 32.9% effective interest in UAT.  

UAT is engaged in the design of related computer products and software service.

As of December 31, 2000, the undistributed earnings for each investee are NT$491,859 (US$14,828) for HCDC, NT$1,341,435 

(US$40,441) for USI, and NT$55,215 (US$1,665) for HCKC.  HCKC did not declare dividends in 1999 and 2000.  

USI declared stock dividends for NT$4.00 per share in 2000, and did not declare dividends in 1999.  HCDC declared stock and 

cash dividends in 2000 for NT$0.8 and NT$0.2 per share, respectively, but these dividends have not been distributed.

ASE had net investment losses of NT$100,549 in 1998, net investment income of NT$50,595 in 1999, and net investment 

losses of NT$167,237 (US$5,042) in 2000 from its investments in the aforementioned equity investees.
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Capitalized interest expenses were NT$144,416, NT$123,347 and NT$163,916 (US$4,942) for the years ended December 31, 

1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively. 

ASE Chung Li and HCDC entered into an agreement for the joint development of buildings on the land owned by ASE 

Chung-Li in 1999, which construction was completed in October 2000.  In addition, ASE Chung Li and ASE Material entered 

into purchase agreements with HCDC to purchase the building.  The contract price, which was based on appraisal, totaled 

NT$1,044,341 (US$31,485) and NT$358,442 (US$10,806), respectively.  As of December 31, 2000, ASE Chung Li and ASE 

Material have paid NT$313,333 (US$9,446) and NT$107,500 (US$3,241), respectively, and the balance will be paid in the 

2001.  The building is shown as construction in progress in the 2000 consolidated balance sheet.

7. LONG-TERM BOND INVESTMENTS
 
December 31 

APP Global Finance Ltd. ( APP) bond:  maturity date on 

October 4, 2001; bearing interest at 9.75%; 

and payable semiannually

Federal National Mortgage Association:  

maturity date on May 2, 2001; bearing interest at 6.40 %; 

and payable semiannually

Allowance for loss

  304,166

   

185,585

   489,751

   -

  

   489,751

    320,432

195,320

515,752

(  289,012 )

  

226,740

    9,660

5,888

15,548

(  8,713 )

6,835

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

8. PROPERTIES 

December 31 

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

Transportation equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Leased assets and leasehold improvements

Long leasehold land

    966,103

   13,451,590

   21,949

   369,481

   147,336

   4,925

   14,961,384

1,335,682

   20,586,431

   56,731

   469,584

   235,634

   6,230

   22,690,292

40,268

   620,634

   1,710

   14,157

   7,104

   188

   684,061

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

In 2000, ASE provided allowance for loss amounting to NT$289,012 (US$8,713) for the bond investment in APP because APP 

incurred financial difficulties.

Accumulated depreciation consists of :
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December 31 

Bonders

Testers

Others

   

Total

  460,551

640,250

2,224,128

   

3,324,929

    405,595

1,063,911

3,480,920

4,950,426

    12,228

32,074

104,942

   

149,244

 

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

Machinery in transit and prepayments pertain to the purchase of packaging and testing equipment, which are associated with 

machinery purchased with title transferred but are not yet in ready-for-use condition, and down payments for machinery 

purchased with non- cancelable purchase orders.

Major components for machinery in transit and prepayments are as follows :

9. OTHER ASSETS
December 31 

Deferred charges (Note2)

Tooling

Issuance costs of convertible bonds

Telecommunications, electrical and Computer network systems

Other

Guarantee deposits

Non- operating properties

Other

  271,646

   189,730

   142,266

   72,035

   675,677

   86,542

   54,860

   135,678

   952,757

      124,468

   139,244

   290,208

   346,130

   900,050

   204,112

   147,686

   23,709

   1,275,557

      3,752

   4,198

   8,749

   10,435

   27,134

   6,154

   4,452

   715

   38,455

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$
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Amortization of the above-mentioned goodwill for consolidated subsidiaries (as reflected in general and administrative 

expenses in the statement of income) were NT$345,726, NT$507,816 and NT$559,807 (US$16,877) for the years ended 

December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

In addition, the carrying values of investments in HCDC and USI as discussed in Note 6 as of December 31, 1999 and 2000 

included unamortized goodwill, which is being amortized over ten years through April 2006 for HCDC and July 2010 for USI, 

resulting from the purchases of HCDC shares in 1995 and 1996, and USI shares in 1999 and 2000, as follows:

Amortization of the above-mentioned goodwill for equity   (as reflected in investment income ( loss ) by equity 

method in the statement of income ) were NT$155,088, NT$279,242 and NT$362,971 (US$10,943 ) for the years ended 

December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

As of December 31, 1999 and 2000, unused credit lines for short- term borrowings and commercial papers and bank 

acceptances payable total approximately NT$11,191,775 and NT$14,248,718 (US$429,566 ), respectively.

10. CONSOLIDATED DEBITS

 
December 31 

Motorola SPS Businesses ( Note 26 )

ISE Labs shares ( Note 26 )

ASE Test shares

Other

    427,944

   2,056,775

   2,749,558

   11,551

   5,245,828

        417,760

   2,008,793

   2,554,869

   18,124

   4,999,546

        12,595

   60,561

   77,023

   546

   150,725

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

December 31 

 HCDC

 USI

    935,886

   1,862,225

  

   2,798,111

        780,798

1,872,342

2,653,140

        23,539

56,447

  

79,986

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

These represent goodwill arising from the purchases of :

11. SHORT -TERM BORROWINGS
 
December 31 

Letters of credit

Revolving

Promissory notes

  6.57~8.515

1.4~8 

 6.66~8.45

0.975-7.5

  1.6-10

   8.1-8.7

1,733,626

2,741,038

927,933

5,402,597

1,160,916

1,601,589

1,025,142

3,787,647

52,265

82,636

27,975

162,876

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$
Interest

  Rate ( % ) 
Interest

  Rate ( % ) 
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12. COMMERCIAL PAPER AND BANK ACCEPTANCES PAYABLE

Commercial paper and bank acceptances payable bore interest rates ranging from 4.7% to 6.76%  in 1999 and 5.2% to 

11.5% in 2000, respectively.

13. LONG - TERM BONDS PAYABLE

Set forth below is information on the long - term bonds payable :

A. US$200 million issued by ASE

In November 1997, ASE issued bonds, consisting of 200 units with face value of US$1 million ( NT$30.8 million) each, with 

zero coupon, due November 2002.  The bonds bear an implicit interest rate of 6.372%.

Starting from December 1997 through October 2002, the bondholders may convert the bonds into common shares at the 

specified conversion price.  The conversion rate was based on the current market price at the time of sale.  As of December 31, 

2000, 355,086 common shares were issued as a result of the conversion of such bonds, resulting in capital surplus of 

NT$32,102 ( US$968 ).  As of December 31, 2000, the outstanding convertible bonds aggregated US$199 million ( NT$6,601 

million ).

On or at any time after October 14, 2000, ASE may redeem the bonds at the redemption price if:

a) ( i ) the closing price of the common shares for a period of 30 consecutive trading days is higher than 140% of the

conversion price ( NT$59.7 per share as at December 31, 2000 ) in effect on each such trading day and ( ii ) the closing price 

of the common shares translated into US dollars at the prevailing rate for a period of 30 consecutive trading days is higher 

than 140% of the conversion price then in effect translated into US dollars at the rate of NT$28.62=US$1.00; or

b) at least 95% of the bonds have already been converted, redeemed, or purchased and cancelled.

In addition, ASE may, if the applicable tax law is unfavorably changed, redeem at any time all, but not some, of the bonds.

On September 5, 1997, ASE entered into a firm commitment subscription agreement with SBC Warburg Securities Pte. Ltd. 

( “SBC Warburg” ) for the sale by ASE to SBC Warburg of US$200 million Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2002

( the “Convertible Bonds” ).  The closing of the sale of the Convertible Bonds was initially scheduled to occur on October 6, 

1997.  Due to the adverse market conditions prevailing during this period of time as a result of the Asian financial crisis, 

however, SBC Warburg requested that the closing date for the sale of the Convertible Bonds be extended.

December 31 

Foreign convertible bonds – US$200 million issued by ASE

Foreign convertible bonds – US$110 million issued by 

ASE Test Finance Limited

Accrued interest

      6,292,000

   

3,460,050

   1,075,613

   10,827,663

  6,597,845

   

3,637,908

   1,993,426

   12,229,179

  198,910

   

109,675

   60,097

   368,682

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$
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During the extension period ( the “Extension Period” ), SBC Warburg decided to market the Convertible Bonds to potential 

investors as two separate instruments by repackaging them into:  (1) a debt portion consisting of US$200 million callable 

floating rate notes which are secured by the Convertible Bonds ( the “FRNs” ) and (2 ) an equity portion consisting of options 

to purchase the Convertible Bonds ( the “Call Options” ).  SBC Warburg was able to obtain commitments for the entire issue of 

the FRNs but, as a result of the adverse market conditions described above, was able to obtain commitments for only a portion 

of the Call Options.  As a result, Swiss Bank Corporation ( “SBC”), an affiliate of SBC Warburg, approached a number of large 

institutional investors, including J&R Holding Limited ( “J&R Holding” ), a consolidated subsidiary of ASE, with a proposal to 

sell a portion of the Call Options.  Subsequently, J&R Holding entered into two agreements with SBC to purchase options on 

a portion of the Convertible Bonds.

Under the first agreement with SBC, J&R Holding is required to make four cash payments to SBC on November 4, 1998, 1999, 

2000 and 2001 as long as the Call Options remain unexercised and outstanding.  In return, J&R Holding has the right to call 

the Convertible Bonds at any time during the period from November 1998 through November 2002.  The exercise price of the 

Call Options is equal to the accreted carrying value of the Convertible Bonds as shown on the Corporation’s balance sheet at 

the date exercised.  Pursuant to the second agreement, SBC paid US$200,000 to J&R Holding.  In return, SBC has the right 

to sell a portion of the Call Options to J&R Holding at any time between November 4, 1997 and November 1, 1998.  In any 

event, J&R Holding was required under the automatic exercise provision of this agreement to purchase the Call Options upon 

the expiration of the agreement on November 1, 1998.

The closing of the sale of the Convertible Bonds eventually took place on November 4, 1997.  Upon the closing of the sale 

of the Convertible Bonds, SBC Warburg immediately resold the Convertible Bonds to a subsidiary of SBC Warburg.  Such 

subsidiary in turn repackaged the Convertible Bonds into the FRNs and the Call Options for resale to the investors that had 

indicated an interest in purchasing the FRNs and/or the Call Options during the Extension Period.  The closing of the sale of 

the FRNs and the Call Options took place on November 5, 1997.

SBC Warburg and its subsidiary have entered into a swap transaction, which stipulates that SBC Warburg will pay the 

interest on the FRN ( aggregating to US$80 million ( NT$2,654 million) ) on the subsidiary’s behalf.  The subsidiary will 

repay the interest to SBC Warburg at the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.  ASE has contracted with certain banks to 

issue letters of credit for US$71,834 ( NT$2,382,734 ) to SBC Warburg to guarantee the interest payment obligation of the 

subsidiary.  Under the contract with these banks, ASE may not, among other things, change its scope of operations and is 

required to maintain certain financial ratios.

B. US$110 million of Foreign Convertible Notes

In June 1999, ASE Test ( the “Guarantor” ), in connection with the acquisitions of ISE Labs and Motorola SPS Businesses, 

issued US$160 million ( NT$5,307 million ) of 1% guaranteed convertible notes ( the “Convertible Notes” ) due July 1, 2004 

through its subsidiary, ASE Test Finance Limited ( the “Issuer” ).  ASE subscribed to US$50 million ( NT$1,659 million ) of the 

Convertible Notes and, accordingly, as of December 31, 2000, the net balance of US$109,890 thousand (NT$3,645 million ) 

is shown in the accompanying balance sheet.

The holders of the Convertible Notes are entitled to convert the Convertibles into ASE Test’s ordinary shares at the specified 

conversion price at any time after December 29, 1999 and before or on July 1, 2004.

The Convertible Notes may be redeemed under the following circumstances:

a) Redemption for taxation reasons:

If the applicable tax law or treaty is unfavorably revised, the Issuer or ASE Test may redeem the Convertible Notes in whole 

at early redemption price, at any time upon giving written notice not less than 30 days and not more than 60 days to the 

bondholders.

62



December 31 

Mortgage bank loans for purchase of machinery

Acceptances payable to syndicate banks 

Bank loans secured by assets

Revolving bank loans

Obligation under capital leases ( Note 22 )

Current portion

    4,272,641

   6,947,225

   921,978

   315,317

   168,829

   12,625,990

   2,886,351

   9,739,639

        4,989,564

   6,678,815

   1,540,747

   250,708

   179,952

   13,639,786

   3,309,935

   10,329,851

        150,424

   201,351

   46,450

   7,558

   5,425

   411,208

   99,787

   311,421

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

b) Redemption at the option of the Issuer:

On or at any time after July 1, 2002, the Issuer may redeem all or a part of the Convertible Notes at the early redemption 

price.

A. Mortgage bank loans for purchases of machinery :

These represent various bank loans obtained by ASE, ASE Test, Inc., ASE Chung-Li, ASE Technologies, Inc., and ASE Material.  

These mortgage bank loans are repayable in monthly, quarterly or semi-annually installments and bear interest at rates ranging 

from 1.3% to 8.3% in 1999 and 1.1% to 8.12% in 2000.

ASE has syndicate loan agreements with banks that stipulate, among other things, the following:

1) Without the prior written consent from the majority of the banks, ASE cannot:

a) Give guarantees to or assume direct or indirect liabilities of other parties, except for its existing obligations, 

in excess of US$40 million ( NT$1,327 million ).

b) Enter into a merger agreement.

c) Transfer or sell more than 20 % of its total assets, including equipment and receivables.

d) Provide collateral to other parties involving 25% of its total assets.

e) Make loans to other parties.

f) Enter into contracts with terms and conditions which are not at arm’s length.

g) Change significantly its accounting practices.

h) Invest up to 50 % of its equity in shares of HCDC.

2) Maintenance by ASE of certain financial ratios.

The syndicate loan has expired in November 2000.

Long-term debts consist of the following:

14. LONG - TERM DEBTS
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December 31 

Principal- five - year revolving credit lines 

aggregating NT$8,000,000 ( US$241,182 ) through 

June 2003, interest at 4.66% -6.2558% in 1999 and 

5.223%– 6.378% in 2000

Unamortized discounts

7,075,000

( 127,775 )

6,947,225

6,775,000

 ( 96,185 )

6,678,815

204,251

( 2,900 )

201,351

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

Acceptances payable to syndicate banks were covered by several bank acceptance agreements made by ASE and ASE Test, Inc. 

which stipulate, among other things, the following:

1) Without the prior written consent from the majority of the banks, ASE can not pledge its assets or assume liabilities or

change its operating items or merge with any other entity or dispose of more than 20 % of total assets, or provide financing 

to other entity, or make such investment that will unfavorably affect its financial conditions.

2) ASE's tangible net worth (as defined ) should not be less than NT$19 billion (US$573 million ).

3) ASE can only invest up to 50 % of its tangible net worth (as defined ) in the shares of HCDC.

4) ASE is required to maintain certain financial ratios.

5) ASE is required to pay an annual commitment fee at 0.15- 0.2 % of the difference between the authorized and utilized 

credit line.

6) ASE should not change its accounting policies significantly.

ASE Test provided a guaranty on the bank acceptance agreement entered into by ASE Test, Inc.  Under the guaranty,  

ASE Test is required to maintain certain financial ratios and, without written consent of the majority banks, shall not:

1) Merge or consolidate with any other entity or take any action to dissolve, liquidate or reorganize.

2) Purchase or redeem its shares or reduce its share capital.

3) Reduce its ownership in ASE Test, Inc. to less than 51%.

4) Transfer, sell, lease or dispose of a substantial portion of its assets.

C. Bank loans secured by assets

These represent various bank loans obtained by ISE Labs and ASE Korea secured by all their assets.  The maturities of the 

loans are May 2009 and November 2003, respectively, and the loans bear interest ranging from 7.75% to 9.5% or at prime 

rate and 8.45% -10.5%, respectively.  These agreements contain certain covenant and default provisions that require 

ISE Labs to maintain certain financial ratios, dividend and capital expenditure restrictions and maintenance of working 

capital requirements.

B. Acceptances payable to syndicate banks
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D. Revolving bank loans

These represent a loan of JPY1.3 billion in 1999 and loans of 2000.  The loan is repayable in the equivalent amount of 

US$10 million (NT$301 million ) over three equal semi-annual installments starting October 9, 2000 with an interest rate 

equal to LIBOR plus 0.5% margin.

As of December 31, 1999 and 2000, unused long- term bank facilities totaled approximately NT$3,106,827 and NT$5,869,764 

( US$176,960 ), respectively.

As of December 31, 1999 and 2000, the future maturities of long-term debts 

( including long- term bond payable ) are as follows:

In September 2000, ASE issued 20,000,000 ADSs, representing 100,000,000 common shares.  In July 1995, ASE issued 

8,600,000 GDSs, representing 43,000,000 common shares.  Concurrently with the ADS issuance, the GDS holders have 

converted their outstanding GDSs into ADSs.  As of December 31, 2000, the GDS holders have converted aggregated 

7,536,000 ADSs, representing aggregated 37,679,000 common shares.

The ADS or GDS holders generally have the same rights and obligations as the shareholders, subject to the provision of relevant 

ROC laws.  The exercise of such rights and obligations shall comply with the related regulations and the deposit agreement, 

which stipulate, among other things, that the ADS or GDS holders can, through Citicorp Financial Services Limited, as nominee 

holder:  (a) exercise their voting rights; (b) sell their ADS or GDSs; and, (c) receive dividends declared and subscribe to the 

issuance of new shares.

December 31 

Within the following year

During the second year

During the third year 

During the fourth year

During the fifth year and thereafter

2,886,351

3,419,632

7,991,629

5,201,909

3,954,132

23,453,653

3,309,935

12,484,848

3,257,243

4,939,819

1,877,120

25,868,965

  99,787

   376,390

   98,198

   148,924

   56,591

   779,890

20001999

US$ NT$ NT$

New Taiwan Dollars

US Dollars

Deutsche Mark

Japanese Yen

Singapore Dollars

British Pound

European Currency Unit

9,296,544

361,117

2,897

2,344,208

24

NT$

US$

DM

¥

SGD

20001999

Long-term debts ( including long-term bond payable ) by currencies are detailed as follows:

12,128,557

469,339

940

5,069,552

7

91

4

NT$

US$

DM

¥

SGD

GBP

EUR

15. SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
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Under the ROC Company Law, capital surplus can only be used to offset against deficit or be transferred to capital.  Under 

relevant regulations, the paid- in capital in excess of par value can be transferred to capital only once a year and is subject to 

a specified limit.

ASE’s Articles of Incorporation provide that the annual net income shall be appropriated as follows:

a. gain on disposal of properties, less applicable income tax, as capital surplus;

b. offset against deficit, if any;

c. 10 % of the remainder as legal reserve, until the accumulated amount equals paid–in capital;

d. an amount ( Note 6 ) equal to the income from long-term investments in shares of stock accounted for by equity

method, excluding cash dividends, as special reserve;

e. not more than 2% of the remainder, as compensation to directors and supervisors;

f. 5% to 7% of the remainder, as bonus to employees, of which 5% will be distributed in shares based on the employee 

stock bonus plan and the excess to be distributed to specific employees as decided by the board of directors; and

g. the remainder, as dividends to shareholders.

The aforementioned appropriations shall be approved by the shareholders in the following year and given effect in the 

financial statements of such year.

Under the ROC Company Law, the aforementioned legal reserve may be used to offset a deficit.  Also, when the reserve has 

reached 50 % of capital, up to 50 % thereof may be transferred to capital.

ASE is currently going through a growth phase.  In order to meet the needs of operational expansion, both current and future, 

and to satisfy shareholders’ need for cash inflow, in the Corporation’s dividend policy priority shall be given to stock dividends; 

cash dividends may also be issued.  In principle, the percentage of cash dividends issued shall not exceed 20 %.  Cash dividends 

shall not be issued if the dividend per share is less than NT$0.1; stock dividends shall be used instead.

 

With respect to the percentage of cash dividends to be issued referred to in the previous paragraph, ASE may decide on 

the most suitable dividend policy and method to issue in accordance with its current operational status, and taking into 

consideration the budget plan for the following year.  The board of directors shall draw up a profit distribution plan, 

which shall be submitted to the shareholders’ meeting for approval before implementation.

Under the Integrated Income Tax System which became effective on January 1, 1998, non-corporate resident shareholders 

are allowed a tax credit for the income tax paid or payable by ASE on earnings generated in 1998 and onwards.  

An Imputation Credit Account ( ICA) is maintained by ASE for such income tax and the tax credit allocated to each shareholder.  

The maximum credit available for allocation to each shareholder cannot exceed the balance shown in the ICA on the date of 

distribution of dividends.

As of December 31, 2000 the creditable taxes aggregated NT$6,380 (US$192).  The actual and estimated percentage for the 

distribution of 1999 and 2000 net income was 4.74% and 9.77%, respectively.

As of December 31, 2000, the unappropriated earnings prior to 1998 ( the year that Integrated Income Tax System became 

effective ) amounted to NT$17,644 ( US$532 ).
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16. GAIN ON SALES OF INVESTMENTS
This consists of the gross gain on sales of :

Sale of ASE Test's shares

Sale of ASE's shares held by subsidiaries ( Note 27)

Other

190,999

42,692

   373,253

   606,944

  4,007,674

   1,388,523

   147,958

   5,544,155

  -

   -

   91,666

   91,666

  -

   -

   2,763

   2,763

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

US secondary public offering of 2,244 

thousand shares in June and July 1997

First offering of 1,400 thousand shares sold 

to third party investors for issuances of 

Taiwan Depositary Receipts ( TDRs ) in December 1997

Sale of 100 thousand shares for issuance of 

TDR from January to March 1998

Secondary offering of 2,500 thousand 

shares for issuances of TDRs in March 1999

 

 -

   

-

   

190,999

   

-

   190,999

   

 -

  

 

-

  

 -

   

4,007,674

   4,007,674

 

 -

  

 -

   

-

   

-

   -

  

-

  

 -

  

 -

  

 -

   -

The gain on sale of ASE Test’s ordinary shares, as shown above, is broken out as follows:

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

1,405 thousands shares sold in December 1998

32,450 thousand shares sold in December 

1999 through the   of GDSs

 

42,692

   

-

   42,692

   

 -

   

1,388,523

   1,388,523

 

-

  

 -

   -

  

-

   

-

   -

The gain on sale of ASE’s common shares, as shown above, is broken out as follows:
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Current

Tax based on pre-tax accounting 

income at statutory rate

Add ( less ) tax effects of :

Permanent differences Tax- exempt income

- Tax holiday

- Gain from sales of securities

Investment income

- Sale of ASE Test shares

Unamortized expense for issuance of GDS

Temporary differences

Investment income

Unfunded pension cost

Unrealized foreign exchange (gain ) loss

Bond interest payable

Other

Credits for investments and research 

and development

Deferred

Income taxes (10% ) on undistributed 

earnings generated in 1998 and onwards

Adjustment of prior year's income tax

Income tax ( benefit ) expense

819,508

( 508,822 )

  -

 ( 47,750 )

 ( 4,770 )

 ( 132,528 )

   16,357

 ( 6,265 )

   109,442

   53,895

   299,067

 

( 138,923 )

 ( 267,511 )

   

-

 ( 43,410 )

 ( 150,777 )

3,218,520

( 779,437 )

( 384,079 )

 ( 1,001,919 )

   -

 ( 398,886 )

   8,494

 ( 38,701 )

   112,318

   248,765

   985,075

 

( 401,525 )

 ( 155,437 )

   

44,539

 ( 13,109 )

   459,543

3,211,156

( 700,749 )

( 51,415 )

   -

   -

 ( 523,941 )

   12,214

   91,102

   114,798

   158,786

   2,311,951

 

( 1,231,247 )

 ( 152,138 )

   

147,379

 ( 10,177 )

   1,065,768

96,809

( 21,126 )

( 1,550 )

   -

   -

 ( 15,796 )

   368

   2,747

   3,461

   4,787

   69,700

 ( 37,119 )

 ( 4,587 )

   

4,443

 ( 307 )

   32,130

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

17. INCOME TAX
a. Income tax expense ( benefit ) is summarized as follows:

Domestic entities in ROC ( 25% statutory rate )

Foreign entities

ASE Korea Inc. ( 30.8 % statutory rate )

ISE Labs, Inc. ( federal tax rate 35% 

and state tax rate 6% )

ASE Test Malaysia (30% statutory rate )

537,192

   -

   

-

   282,316

   819,508

2,717,796

   55,770

   

163,240

   281,714

   3,218,520

2,542,888

   2,153

   

439,169

   226,946

   3,211,156

76,662

   65

   

13,240

   6,842

   96,809

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

b. The above-mentioned taxes on pre-tax accounting income at the statutory rates for domestic and foreign entities 

are shown below:
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Current assets 

Unused tax credits

Provision for inventory obsolescence

Provision for doubtful accounts and sales allowance

Unrealized foreign exchange loss

Other

Valuation allowance

Deferred income tax liability-unrealized foreign exchange gain

Non- current assets ( liabilities )

Unused tax credits

Accrued pension costs

Accrued interest on convertible bonds

Loss carry forward

Others

Valuation allowance

Deferred income tax liability

Investment income

Unrealized foreign exchange gain

Goodwill amortization

Others

470,956

   35,141

   34,500

   2,292

   129,184

   672,073

 ( 152,738 )

   519,335

 ( 26,802 )

   492,533

   1,152,528

   44,203

   229,186

   260,523

   11,909

   1,698,349

 ( 589,916 )

   1,108,433

 ( 675,000 )

 ( 56,600 )

 ( 156,952 )

 ( 226,471 )

 ( 1,115,023 )

 ( 6,590 )

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

1,028,885

   29,060

   73,766

   7,626

   129,139

   1,268,476

 ( 85,057 )

   1,183,419

 ( 22,692 )

   1,160,727

   754,914

   57,403

   362,663

   24,645

   83,382

   1,283,007

 ( 343,825 )

   939,182

 ( 1,159,500 )

 ( 7,500 )

 ( 75,744 )

 ( 207,900 )

 ( 1,450,644 )

 ( 511,462 )

31,019

   876

   2,224

   230

   3,893

   38,242

 ( 2,565 )

   35,677

 ( 684 )

   34,993

   22,759

   1,731

   10,933

   743

   2,514

   38,680

 ( 10,366 )

   28,314

 ( 34,956 )

 ( 226 )

 ( 2,283 )

 ( 6,268 )

 ( 43,733 )

 ( 15,419 )

c. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1999 and 2000 are summarized as follows:

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, ASE considered its future taxable earnings and expected timing for the 

reversal of temporary differences.  The valuation allowance is provided to reduce the gross deferred tax assets to an amount 

which ASE believes will more likely be realized.  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified in the consolidated balance 

sheet based on the classification of the related assets or liabilities or the expected timing of the reversal of temporary 

differences.

Due to new tax rulings effective in 2000, ASE Test, Inc. is allowed to utilize a greater proportion of its tax credits.  As a result, 

the valuation allowance for non-current deferred tax asset is reversed and credited to income tax benefits.

The gain on sales of the ASE Test’s ordinary shares in 1997 and 1999, as discussed in Note 16, was considered as a permanent 

difference because management decided to re-invest and not to distribute the gain and, accordingly, no deferred tax liability 

is recognized.
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December 31, 2000 

d. As of December 31, 2000, unused tax credits of ROC subsidiaries which can be utilized to offset their future 

income tax are set forth below:

In the ROC, the tax credits may be utilized to reduce up to 50% of income tax payable each year.  In the expiring year, any 

remainder of unused tax credits can be used entirely.

The Federal and State net operating loss carryforward of ISE Labs, Inc. as of December 31, 2000 are approximately US$2.5 

million and US$1.0 million with expiration in 2020 and 2005, respectively.

A portion of ASE’s and ASE Test, Inc.’s income from the manufacture, processing and testing of semiconductors is exempt 

from income tax for five years ending December 2000 and 2005, respectively.  The income of ASE Test Malaysia (during the 

“pioneer” status tax period ) was exempt from income tax for five years through June 1999.  ASE Test Malaysia has been 

granted approval of “ hi- tech pioneer” status for an additional five years and is expected to commence the tax holiday 

retroactively from July 1, 1999.  The per share effect of tax holiday is NT$0.3 in 1998, NT$0.4 in 1999, and NT$0.3 

(US$0.01) in 2000.

Income tax returns of ASE and ASE Test, Inc. has been examined by the ROC Tax authorities through 1999 and ASE Materials 

and ASE Technologies have been examined by the ROC tax authorities through 1998.  As a result of the examination by the 

ROC tax authorities, ASE has recorded and paid additional taxes of NT$40,000 (US$1,206 ).  ASE has appealed the rulings of 

the ROC tax authorities relating to the aforementioned additional taxes and is awaiting the outcome of the appeal.  No 

additional taxes were required to be paid by ASE Test, Inc. and ASE Materials.  

The consolidated entities ( including ASE ) in the ROC have pension plans for their regular employees.  Retirement benefits are 

based on the length of service and average salaries or wages of the last six months before retirement.  Those entities make 

monthly contributions, at 2% of salaries and wages, to pension funds which are in the name of, and are administered by, the 

employee pension plan committee of the respective entities.  The changes in the retirement funds are summarized as follows:

Year of Expiry

2001

2002

2003

2004

$           -

   -

   -

   692,982

  $ 692,982

$           -

   -

   -

   119,000

  $ 119,000

  $  221,870

   150,793

   221,141

   264,013

  $  857,817

$    221,870

   150,793

   221,141

   1,189,995

  $  1,783,799

ASE ASE (Chung-Li ) ASE Material ASE Test, Inc. Total

Balance, beginning of year

Contributions

Payments

Interest income

Balance, end of year

145,726

   32,358

 ( 2,738 )

   11,066

   186,412

186,412

   34,410

 ( 574 )

   11,957

   232,205

232,205

   92,211

 ( 435 )

   15,519

   339,500

7,000

   2,780

 ( 13 )

   468

   10,235

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

18. PENSION PLANS

$           -

   -

   -

   114,000

  $ 114,000
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Service costs

Interest

Projected return on pension assets

Amortization of prior period service cost, 

gain or loss on plan assets, etc.

76,656

   28,075

 ( 11,491 )

   

6,426

   99,666

56,870

   23,243

 ( 12,543 )

   2,689

   70,259

120,528

   30,234

 ( 14,575 )

   

4,231

   140,418

3,634

   911

 ( 439 )

   

127

   4,233

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31 

Pension costs for these entities consist of :

a. Benefit obligations

Accumulated benefit obligation

Additional benefits based on future salaries

Projected benefit obligation

Fair value of assets

Funded status

Unrealized prior service costs

Unrecognized net transition obligation

Unrecognized gain ( loss ) of pension assets

Additional liability

Portion in other current liabilities

Accrued pension cost

b. Vested obligation

c. Actuarial assumption

Discount rate

Increase in future salary level

Expected rate of return on plan assets

163,174

   196,843

   360,017

 ( 188,433 )

   171,584

 (  7,299 )

 ( 118,034 )

   124,207

   -

 ( 2,397 )

   168,061

240

   

6.5% -7%

   5% -6%

   6.5% -7%

209,543

   228,743

   438,286

 ( 211,576 )

   226,710

 (  6,951 )

 ( 114,468 )

   92,854

   -

 ( 8,956 )

   189,189

2,162

   

347,107

   302,925

   650,032

 ( 311,758 )

   338,274

   -

 ( 114,550 )

   30,580

   -

 ( 5,879 )

   248,425

7,124

   

6%

   4% -5%

   6%

10,465

   9,132

   19,597

 ( 9,399 )

   10,198

   -

 ( 3,453 )

   921

   -

 ( 177 )

   7,489

215

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

December 31 

Other pension information based on actuarial calculations of the plan are as follows:

6.5% -7%   

     4% -5.5%

   6.5% -7%   
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22. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2000

a. ASE, ASE Test, Inc. and ASE Material lease the land on which their buildings are situated under various operating lease 

agreements with the government expiring on various dates through September 2010.  The agreements grant these entities 

option to renew the leases and reserve the right for the lessor to adjust the lease charges upon an increase in the assessed 

19. STOCK OPTION PLANS

ASE Test has six stock option plans, the 1996 Option Plan (the “Pre-IPO Plan”), the 1996 Executive Management Option Plan 

(the “1996 Plan”), and the 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 Option Plans.  Stock options granted under these plans are exercisable 

for ASE Test ordinary shares based on a vesting schedule over five years until the options expire.  Because the exercise price is 

equal to the market price of the shares on the date of grant, no compensation cost was recognized.

20. EARNINGS PER SHARE AND ADS

Primary and fully diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 are calculated as follows:

The denominator is the weighted average number of outstanding shares of common stock of 1,780,000,000 and 

1,980,000,000 and 2,677,602,508 shares in 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.  The numerator is the net income with the 

primary and fully diluted EPS adjustment for the employee stock options of ASE Test.

Primary and fully diluted earnings per ADS for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 are calculated as follows:

The denominator is the above-mentioned weighted average outstanding shares divided by five ( one ADS represents five 

common shares ) .  The numerator is the same as mentioned in the above EPS calculation.

21. ASSETS PLEDGED OR MORTGAGED

The following assets have been pledged or mortgaged as first priority collateral for short- term and long-term debts, 

recruitment of foreign laborers and for tax appeal to the tax authorities:

Buildings and improvements

Machinery and equipment

Long - term investments

Time deposits

Guarantee deposits - time deposits

-

   4,427,859

   1,785,323

   428,137

   55,219

   6,696,538

710,327

   7,487,835

   1,266,164

   297,079

   73,599

   9,835,004

21,415

   225,741

   38,172

   8,956

   2,219

   296,503

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

December 31 

In addition, the total assets of ISE Labs amounting to NT$6,927,897 ( US$208,860 ) as of December 31, 2000, have been 

pledged as collaterals for its long-term and short- term debts.
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value of the land and to terminate the leases under certain conditions.  ASE Technologies ( U.S.A. ), Inc. has three operating 

lease agreements for office facilities.  The rental expense for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 was 

approximately NT$10,947, NT$59,973 and NT$118,929 ( US$3,585 ), respectively.  In addition, ASE and ASE Test, Inc. 

and ISE Labs also lease equipment under non - cancellable capital lease agreements.  The net book value as of December 31, 

1999 and 2000 of the equipment acquired under the capital obligations amounted to NT$325,473 and NT$200,429, 

respectively.  The future minimum lease payments under the above-mentioned operating leases are as follows:

b. ASE, ASE Test, Inc., ASE Test Malaysia and ASE Chung-Li engage outside sales agencies.  Commissions and 

service fees were paid based on monthly incurred services - related cost and expenses plus 15% or based on 1% -3% 

(decreased to 1% after July 2000 ) of net export sales.  Commissions and service fees paid in 1998, 

1999 and 2000 totaled approximately NT$469,613, NT$570,729 and NT$762,159 ( US$22,977 ), respectively.

c. As of December 31, 2000, undrawn letters of credit of approximately NT$626,527 ( US$18,888 ).

d. As of December 31, 2000, commitments to purchase machinery and equipment totaled approximately 

NT$5,469,766 (US$164,901).

e. As of December 31, 2000, commitments for construction of buildings totaled approximately NT$682,796 ( US$20,585).

f. ASE entered into technology agreements which will expire in 2019 ( with foreign companies ) for the procurement of 

manufacturing technology for certain products.  Based on the agreements, ASE shall pay royalties at a specified 

percentage of sales quantities.  Such royalties in 1998, 1999 and 2000 were approximately NT$86,516, NT$112,025 

2001

2002

2003

2004

Thereafter

Total minimum lease payments

275,997

   246,250

   243,367

   241,075

   1,044,099

   2,050,788

8,321

   7,424

   7,337

   7,268

   31,477

   61,827

US$NT$

NT$

The future minimum lease payments under above-mentioned capital leases as of December 31, 2000 are as follows:

Within the following year

Within the second year

Within the third year

Total minimum lease payments

Less:  Imputed interest

Present value of future lease obligations

Capital lease obligation, current

Capital lease obligation, long-term

92,155

   82,183

   23,540

   197,878

 ( 17,926 )

   179,952

 ( 80,027 )

   99,925

2,778

   2,478

   709

   5,965

 ( 540 )

   5,425

 ( 2,413 )

   3,012

US$

Operating leases
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Information on derivative transactions are as follows:

a. Interest rate swap

ASE entered into two interest rate swap contracts with a foreign bank, which expired in January and December 1999.  Under 

these contracts, ASE paid interest based on a nominal principal amount of US$20 million ( NT$663 million ) and floating 

interest at a rate of 4.85% - 5.19% of LIBOR minus 0.21%- 0.25 %, whichever was higher.  The foreign bank paid interest to 

ASE based on the same nominal principal and floating interest rate of 3 months’ USD LIBOR. The interest settlement was 

made on net basis.  The net interest income from such contracts amounted to NT$3,116 in 1998 and NT$842 in 1999.  

As of December 31, 2000, there were no outstanding contracts.

b. Forward exchange contracts

ASE Test Malaysia entered into forward contracts to hedge foreign exchange fluctuations associated with foreign currency 

liabilities.  As of December 31, 2000, the outstanding contracts are as follows:

g. As of December 31, 2000, ASE has endorsed and guaranteed the promissory notes of its subsidiaries and 

equity investees, as follows:

ASE ( Labuan )

ASE Technologies

ASE Holding

ASE ( Philippines )

ASE Investment

ASE Material

ASE Chung-Li

HCDC

  2,648,289

   132,000

   132,620

   1,823,525

   300,000

   714,438

   1,713,008

  7,463,880

   960,000

8,423,880

79,840

   3,980

   3,998

   54,975

   9,044

   21,539

   51,643

  225,019

   28,942

   253,961

NT$ US$Subsidiaries 

Equity Investee 

Purchase

Purchase

Purchase

Purchase

Purchase

Purchase

Purchase

 

US$       45

US$   3,000

JPY  50,000

US$   3,000

JPY  50,000

JPY  20,000

JPY  30,000

Forward Contract
Contract  Value

( Thousand )

3.7909 ( US$/RM)

 3.7677 ( US$/RM)

 0.0351 ( JPY/RM)

 3.7721 ( US$/RM)

 0.0347 ( JPY/RM)

 0.0333 ( JPY/RM)

 0.0346 ( JPY/RM)

  Forward Rate 

 $    0.1

25.5

 ( 0.9 )

   22.0

   3.5

   8.9

   2.7

  Carrying Value 

$    0.1

25.3

( 52.2 )

15.3

( 29.4 )

-

( 10.7 ) 

Fair  Value 
 

January 4, 2001

January 4, 2001

January 4, 2001

January 31, 2001

January 31, 2001

February 28, 2001

February 28, 2001

Maturity Dates 

The gain arising from such contracts based on mark-to- market valuation were approximately NT$78,194 ( US$2,357) in 2000.

74



c. European options

Because ASE and ASE Test, Inc. expect to receive U.S. dollars from export sales and to pay Japanese yen or New Taiwan Dollars 

for long - term debts, ASE and ASE Test, Inc. entered into foreign currency option contracts to hedge risks of exchange rate 

fluctuations.

As of December 31, 2000, the outstanding contract is as follows:

The loss arising from such contract based on mark– to – market valuation was approximately NT$21,832 ( US$658 ) in 2000.

d. Currency and interest rate swap contract

Because ASE will repay U.S. dollars for long - term bonds payable at maturity, ASE entered into currency and interest rate swap 

contract to hedge risks of exchange rate fluctuations.

Under the contract, ASE will pay NT$1,942.5 million (NTD Notional ) and receive US$60.7 million (USD Notional ) ( the Strike 

Price is US$1: NT$32 ) on November 4, 2002.  In addition, ASE will pay interest based on a NTD Notional principal amount of 

NT$1,942.5 million at 9.7% interest rate and receive interest based on a USD Notional principal amount of US$60.7 million at 

6.0685% interest rate on November 4, 2002.  The principal and interest settlement are to be made on net basis.

The gain arising from such contract based on mark - to -market valuation was approximately NT$21,446 (US$647 ) in 2000.

e. Transaction risk

1) Credit risk

ASE is exposed to credit risk in the event of non - performance of the counterparties to forward contracts on maturity.  

In order to manage this risk, ASE transacts only with financial institutions with good credit ratings.  As a result, no material 

losses resulting from counterparty defaults are anticipated.

2) Market risk

ASE entered into European option and interest rate swap contracts and currency and interest rate swaps to hedge the 

effects of foreign currency fluctuations on net assets or net liabilities, and the fluctuations in interest rates.  Hence, the 

impact of market risk was reduced.

3) Liquidation risk and cash - f low risk 

ASE entered into forward exchange contracts and European option contracts and currency and interest rate swaps to hedge 

its exposure to the effect of exchange rate fluctuations on net assets or net liabilities.  At the maturity of the contracts, ASE 

has enough operating capital to meet cash requirements, so there is no fund raising risk.  Therefore, ASE believes there are 

no significant exposures to liquidation risk and cash flow risk.

Selling US$ call / TWD put US$20 million US$1:  NT$34 December 26, 2001

Amount Maturity DateStrike Price US$ / NT$Contract
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying values of cash, notes receivable, accounts receivable, short - term borrowings, C/P and B/A payable, and notes 

and accounts payable approximate fair values because of the short maturity of these instruments.  The fair values of short-

term and long - term investments are determined based on market values or net equity values.  The fair values of long-term 

liabilities are determined based on the estimated present value of future cash flows using the interest rates of similar long-

term debt instruments which ASE is able to obtain as the discount date.  Fair value of long - term debts is carrying value 

because floating interest rates are applied.

25. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

a. Geographical sales information

Non-Derivative Financial Instruments

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Short-term investments

Notes receivable

Accounts receivable - net

Long - term investments

Liabilities

Short - term borrowings

C / P and B/ A payable

Accounts payable

Long - term bonds payable

Long - term debts 

( included current portion)

Long- term payable for investments 

( included current portion )

 

$ 11,809,112

   216,280

   201,042

   7,262,415

   9,674,432

   3,787,647

   1,703,593

   3,152,353

   10,827,663

   

12,625,990

   

5,474,780

 

 $ 11,809,112

   228,864

   201,042

   7,262,415

   19,974,481

   3,787,647

   1,703,593

   3,152,353

   10,827,663

    

12,625,990

   

5,474,780

 

 $ 14,166,495

   1,682,679

   219,641

   9,040,934

   10,712,199

   5,402,597

   4,281,805

   3,859,909

   12,229,179

   

13,639,786

   

4,191,528

 

 $ 14,166,495

   1,717,617

   219,641

   9,040,934

   10,303,014

   5,402,597

   4,281,805

   3,859,909

   12,229,179

   

13,639,786

   

4,191,528

 

 $ 427,088

   50,729

   6,622

   272,563

   322,948

   162,876

   129,087

   116,368

   368,682

   

411,208

   

126,365

 

 $ 427,088

   51,782

   6,622

   272,563

   310,612

   162,876

   129,087

   116,368

   368,682

   

411,208

126,365

1999

Carrying
Values Fair Values Carrying

Values Fair Values Carrying
Values Fair Values

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$

2000

US$US$

December 31

America

Domestic

Europe 

Asia and other areas

   

        18,645,953

   9,427,343

   852,110

   3,684,155

   32,609,561

   

  33,089,214

   12,639,373

   1,905,646

   3,259,144

   50,893,377

    

  997,565

   381,048

   57,451

   98,256

   1,534,320

  

   

59

   31

   3

   7

   100

   

      12,331,369

   6,301,536

   625,742

   1,503,776

   20,762,423

1998

NT$ NT$ NT$

1999 2000

US$
% of
Total
Sales

  

   

  57

   29

   3

   11

   100

% of
Total
Sales

  

   

  65

   25

   4

   6

   100

% of
Total
Sales

Years Ended December 31

1) Net revenue:
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1999 2000

Years Ended December 31

2) Long - lived assets:

  

   

    73

   22

   5

   100

  

   

72

   23

   5

   100

Years Ended December 31

b. Major customers

Customer accounting with 10% or more of total revenues are showed below:

Domestic

Asia

America

   

  27,849,826

   8,567,995

   1,689,645

  38,107,466

   

43,309,343

   14,271,843

   2,985,014

   60,566,200

    

1,305,678

   430,264

   89,991

   1,825,933

NT$ NT$ US$

Motorola, Inc.

VIA Technologies Inc.

   

5,155,573

2,576,155

   

11,256,760

5,185,434

    

339,366

156,329

  

  

   

  7

6

   

1,508,662

1,328,795

1998

NT$ NT$ NT$

1999 2000

US$
% of
Total
Sales

  

   

16

8

% of
Total
Sales

  

   

22

10

% of
Total
Sales

c. Reported segment information

ASE has three reportable segments:  Packaging, Testing and Investing, each of which requires different development and 

production.  The packaging division packages bare semiconductors into finished semiconductors with enhanced electrical and 

thermal characteristics.  The testing division provides testing services, including front - end engineering testing, wafer probing 

and final testing services.  The investing division is engaged in investing activities.  The accounting policies of the segments 

are the same as those described in Note 2.  Segment information for the years ended December 31, 1999 and 2000 is as 

follows:

  1998

  Revenue from external customer

  Inter-segment revenues

  Interest revenue

  Interest expense

  Net interest revenue (expense )

  Depreciation and amortization

  Segment profit

  Segment asset

  Expenditures for segment assets

  

 

NT$ 21,471,578

 ( 709,155 )

   605,397

   985,796

 ( 380,399 )

   3,237,189

   1,981,281

   47,011,467

   7,447,692

 

NT$  1,317,230

 ( 553,489 )

   20,387

   42,449

 ( 22,062 )

   53,516

 ( 194,370 )

   2,590,684

   1,246,007

 

NT$   3,286,944

 ( 155,666 )

   18,471

   149,224

 ( 130,753 )

   979,234

   792,924

   8,409,405

   1,976,084

 

NT$ 16,867,404

   -

   380,470

   655,684

 ( 275,214 )

   2,240,323

   1,592,322

   25,435,533

   4,225,601

NT$               -

   -

   186,069

   138,439

   47,630

   116

 ( 209,595 )

   10,575,845

   -

All otherInvesting TotalPackaging Testing

(Forward )

% of Total
Long - Lived

Assets

% of Total
Long - Lived

Assets
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  1999

  Revenue from external customer

  Inter - segment revenues

  Interest revenue

  Interest expense

  Net interest revenue (expense )

  Depreciation and amortization

  Segment profit

  Segment asset

  Expenditures for segment assets

  2000 

  Revenue from external customer

  Inter-segment revenues

  Interest revenue

  Interest expense

  Net interest revenue ( expense )

  Depreciation and amortization

  Segment profit

  Segment asset

  Expenditures for segment assets

  2000 

  Revenue from external customer

  Inter-segment revenues

  Interest revenue

  Interest expense

  Net interest revenue ( expense )

  Depreciation and amortization

  Segment profit

  Segment asset

  Expenditures for segment assets

 

  NT$ 33,604,983

 ( 995,422 )

   423,158

   1,469,795

 ( 1,046,637 )

   5,554,367

   9,062,441

   77,330,775

   11,097,395

  NT$ 52,941,476

 ( 2,048,099 )

   554,180

   2,092,238

  ( 1,538,058 )

   8,593,799

   8,403,560

   108,341,164

   31,463,451

  US$   1,596,065

 ( 61,745 )

   16,707

   63,076

  ( 46,369 )

   259,083

   253,348

   3,266,239

   948,551

 

  NT$  1,207,287

 ( 913,892 )

   85,756

   352,561

 ( 266,805 )

   141,647

 ( 935,870 )

   13,968,595

   671,502

  NT$  2,001,604

 ( 1,905,387 )

   60,416

   54,954

   5,462

   295,044

 ( 203,076 )

   6,989,663

   4,330,313

  US$      60,344

 ( 57,443 )

   1,821

   1,657

   164

   8,895

 ( 6,122 )

   210,722

   130,549

 

  NT$   7,874,728

 ( 81,530 )

   227,616

   264,939

 ( 37,323 )

   2,418,278

   2,224,801

   16,203,198

   4,808,413

  NT$ 12,911,073

 ( 142,712 )

   45,112

   375,257 

  ( 330,145 )

   3,815,237

   3,541,102

   31,155,426

   14,720,913

  US$     389,239

 ( 4,302 )

   1,360

   11,313

  ( 9,953 )

   115,020

   106,756

   939,265

   443,802

 

 NT$ 24,522,968

   -

   25,219

   714,780

 ( 689,561 )

   2,994,302

   3,131,508

   35,318,472

   5,617,480

  NT$ 38,028,799

   -

   265,737

   1,200,236

  ( 934,499 )

   4,423,814

   6,191,070

   53,385,822

   12,412,225

  US$   1,146,482

   -

   8,011

   36,184

  ( 28,173 )

   133,368

   186,646

   1,609,461

   374,200

NT$               -

   -

   84,567

   137,515

 ( 52,948 )

   140

   4,642,002

   11,840,510

   -

  NT$               -

   -

   182,915

   461,791 

  ( 278,876 )

   59,704

  ( 1,125,536 )

   16,810,253

   -

  US$               -

   -

   5,515

   13,922

  ( 8,407 )

   1,800

  ( 33,932 )

   506,791

   -

All otherInvesting TotalPackaging Testing
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26. ACQUISITIONS

In May 1999, ASE Test acquired 70 % equity of ISE Labs, which is engaged in the testing and packaging of semiconductors.  

The purchase cost, including transaction costs, was approximately US$100.1 million (NT$3,320.3 million ), which was paid 

in May 1999.

In July 1999, ASE and ASE Test purchased 70 % and 30 %, respectively, of the interest of the Motorola SPS Businesses.  

The purchase cost was approximately US$350.1 million (NT$11,612.8 million ).  As of December 31, 2000, US$223.5 million 

( NT$7,413.5 million ) has been paid and the balance of US$126.6 million (NT$4,199.3 million ), plus interest ( commencing 

as of the acquisition date-July 1999) is payable, US$46.7 million ( NT$1,549.0 ) of which is subject to target sales volumes 

being met for the Motorola SPS Business in Chung-Li, Taiwan, based on specified payment dates within three years.  

ASE believes the contingent payments of US$46.7 million ( NT$1,549.0 ) are determinable beyond a reasonable doubt.  

As of December 31, 2000, ASE has provided guaranteed letters of credit of US$131,741 thousand ( NT$4,369,849 ) to 

Motorola.  Both acquirees currently provide packaging and testing of semiconductors.  A portion of the purchase price was 

financed through a convertible notes offering completed on June 29, 2000 by ASE Test Finance Limited and fully and 

unconditionally guaranteed by ASE Test ( see Note 13 ).

Future payments for investments in Motorola as of December 31, 2000 are as follows:    

The acquisitions of the Motorola SPS Businesses and ISE Labs were accounted for by the purchase method.  Assets acquired 

and liabilities assumed have been recorded at their estimated fair values as of the acquisition date.  The purchase prices 

exceeded the fair value of the net tangible assets by about US$81.9 million for Motorola SPS Businesses and US$76.5 million 

for ISE Labs, Inc.  The purchase cost in excess of fair value of net tangible assets was allocated to various intangible assets, 

which will be amortized on a straight - line basis over 3 to 38 years.

The purchase prices and calculation of goodwill for those acquisitions described above are as follows ( in millions ) :

Within the following year

Within the second year

Within the third year

   773,616

   772,450

   2,645,462

   4,191,528

      23,323

   23,288

   79,755

   126,366

NT$ US$

ISE Labs

Motorola SPS Businesses

US$ 100.1

US$ 350.1

 US$   23.6

  US$ 268.2

 US$  76.5

  US$  81.9

Purchase Cost ExcessNet Book ValueAcquires

Write-up of land

Write-up ( write-down ) in buildings

Write -up ( write-down ) in machinery

Deferred tax liability

Goodwill

  

  87.7

 ( 11.5 )

 ( 8.4 )

   -

   14.1

   81.9

   

  2,903.3

 ( 380.7 )

 ( 278.1 )

   -

   466.8

   2,711.3

NT$   

  2.5

   2.8

   9.0

 ( 5.7 )

   67.9

   76.5

US$   

  82.8

   92.7

   297.9

 ( 188.7 )

   2,251.1

   2,535.8

NT$

Motorola SPS BusinessesISE Labs

US$
Item

The excess purchase price was allocated as follows ( in millions ) :
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The pro forma results of operations include adjustments to give effect to the net decrease in depreciation and the 

amortization of goodwill related to the increased value of acquired fixed assets and identifiable intangible assets, and 

interest expense on debt assumed to finance the purchases.  The unaudited pro forma information is not necessarily 

indicative of the results of operations that would have occurred had the purchases been made at the beginning of the 

periods or the future results of the combined operations.

In the first quarter of 2000, ASE Test adjusted its allocation of purchase price by reducing the allocation to land by US$0.2 

million, buildings by US$2.3 million, machinery by US$2.3 million, deferred tax liabilities by US$1.9 million and increasing the 

allocation to goodwill by US$3.8 million because impairment loss incurred arising from the disposition of the  packaging 

operation of ISE Labs subsequent to the acquisition.

The purchase prices for Motorola SPS Businesses and ISE Labs acquisitions, respectively, are allocated as follows ( in millions ) :

The unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations are presented as if the acquisitions of the Motorola SPS Businesses 

had been made at the beginning of 1998 and 1999, and in the case of ISE Labs, at the beginning of 1998 :

Cash

Accounts receivable

Other current assets

Fixed assets - net

Other assets

Goodwill

Total liabilities

Minority interest

  

  135.0

   448.9

   22.0

   2,589.7

   109.9

   2,134.5

 ( 1,864.6 )

 ( 433.2 )

   3,142.2

NT$   

    1,418.8

   951.1

   216.6

   9,504.9

   81.6

   442.6

 ( 1,626.0 )

   - 

   10,989.6

NT$

ISE LabsMotorola SPS Businesses

Revenue

Net income

Earnings per share - outstanding common shares

Primary

Fully diluted

Earnings per equivalent ADS

Primary

Fully diluted

   46,555,084

   1,926,805

   

   0.80

   0.80

   

   4.01

   4.01

   49,804,626

   6,937,554

   

   3.46

   3.45

   

   17.29

   17.27

1998 1999

NT$ US$

Years Ended December 31
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The above pro forma consolidated results of operations include the pre-acquisition revenues and net income as follows :

Under the method of consolidation used by the Corporation to consolidate the statement of income of ISE Labs for the year 

ended December 31, 1999, ISE Labs’ full - year 1999 net revenues, cost of revenues and operating expenses are included in the 

corporation’s consolidated statements of income.

27. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN ACCOUNTING
PRINCIPLES FOLLOWED BY THE CORPORATION AND GENERALLY
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES IN THE UNITED STATES

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 

in the Republic of China ( “ROC GAAP” ), which differ in the following respects from generally accepted accounting principles 

in the United States ( “US GAAP” ) :

a. Pension benefits

US Financial Accounting Standards ( FAS ) 87,  “Accounting for Pensions”, was effective no later than the beginning of 

the first period for which a US GAAP reconciliation is required.  A portion of the unrecognized net transition obligation at 

the adoption date is to be allocated directly to equity.  The adoption date of ASE for US FAS 87 is the beginning of 1987.  

ROC SFAS 18, which is substantially similar to US FAS 87, was effective in 1996 for listed companies in Taiwan.  

Therefore, pension expense due to different adoption dates is adjusted.

b. Short- term investments

Under ROC GAAP, marketable equity securities are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market value, and debt 

securities at cost.  Under US FAS 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”, except for debt 

securities classified as “held-to-maturity securities”, investments in debt and equity securities, other than those recorded 

on the equity method, should be stated at fair value.

All of the Corporation’s short- term investments are classified as trading securities under US GAAP, with gains and losses 

recognized currently in income.  The unrealized holding gain included in earnings under US GAAP were NT$12,584 in 

1999 and NT$22,354 (US$674 ) in 2000.  All of the Corporation’s short- term investments in mutual funds, stock and 

convertible debt are bought and held principally for the purpose of selling them in the near term.

Net revenues

Net income ( loss )

  

  

17,195,065

 ( 106,946 )

   

   

23,640,123

   809,862

1998   

  

736,765

   65,167

1999   

   

2,152,538

   154,188

1998

Motorola SPS BusinessesISE Labs

1999

NT$NT$NT$ NT$
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c. Bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors

According to ROC regulations and the Articles of Incorporation of the ASE, a portion of distributable earnings should be 

set aside as bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors.  Bonuses to directors and supervisors are always paid in cash.  

However, bonuses to employees may be granted in cash or stock or both.  All of these appropriations, including stock 

bonuses which are valued at par value of NT$10, are charged against retained earnings under ROC GAAP, after such 

appropriations are formally approved by the board of directors and resolved by the shareholders in the following year.  

Under US GAAP, such bonuses are charged to income currently in the year earned.  Stock issued as part of these bonuses is 

recorded at fair market value.  Since the amount and form of such bonuses are not finally determinable until the board of 

directors meeting in the subsequent year, the total amount of the aforementioned bonuses ( “regular bonuses” ) is initially 

accrued based on the management’s estimate regarding the amount to be paid based on ASE’s Articles of Incorporation.  

Any difference between the initially accrued amount and the fair market value of the bonuses settled by the issuance of 

shares is recognized in the year of approval by the board of directors.  The management estimates that the regular annual 

employee bonuses, including cash and stock, will approximate three to four months’ salaries and wages.

Aside from the aforementioned regular bonus plan, ASE decided to grant a special stock bonus to employees in 1997 and 

2000 due to excellent profits for ASE in 1997 and 2000.  Employees who received the special stock bonus are required to 

continue working for ASE for an additional three years.  Accordingly, the amount of special stock bonuses is being allocated 

over three years as special compensation expenses in the statement of income.

d. Treasury stock

Under US GAAP, when a subsidiary holds its parent’s stock as investments, the stock should be treated as treasury stock 

and is presented in the consolidated balance sheet as a deduction to shareholders’ equity.  The capital gain ( loss ) from 

sales of treasury stock is added to or deducted from the balance of treasury stock.  Under ROC GAAP, such treatment is 

not required and, as a result, the investment in ASE common shares is presented as a long-term investment in the balance 

sheets and capital gain ( loss ) from sale of treasury stock is recognized and included in the statement of income.

e. Depreciation of buildings

Under ROC GAAP, the estimated life of a building can be as long as 40 years based on ROC practices.  For US GAAP 

purposes, an assessment for useful lives of buildings is estimated to be 25 years.

f. Excess of book value on transfer of buildings between related parties

ASE Test, Inc., a consolidated subsidiary, purchased buildings and facilitates from another consolidated subsidiary, ASE 

Technologies, in 1997.  The actual costs purchased from ASE Technologies were based on market value.  Such additional 

payment for the excess of book value of NT$17,667 was capitalized by ASE Test, Inc. as allowed under ROC GAAP.  

Under US GAAP, transfers of assets from related parties should not be recorded by the transferee at stepped-up values.

g. Gain on sales of subsidiary’s stock

The carrying value of stock investments in ASE Test by J&R Holding under ROC GAAP is different from that under US GAAP 

mainly due to the differences in accounting for bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors.  Since parts of such stock 

investments were sold in 1997 and 1999, the disposal gain ( loss ) under US GAAP was different from that under ROC GAAP 

as a result of the difference in carrying values.
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h. Effects of US GAAP adjustments on equity long-term investment

The carrying values of equity- basis investments and the investment income ( loss ) accounted for by the equity method in 

HCDC, HCKC and USI are reflected in the financial statements under ROC GAAP. The financial statements of these equity 

investees under ROC GAAP are different from the financial statements had those financial statements been prepared under 

US GAAP mainly due to the differences in accounting for bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors and deprecation 

of buildings.  Therefore, the investment income ( loss ) has been adjusted to reflect the differences between ROC and US 

GAAP in the investees’ financial statements.

i. Impairment of long-lived assets

US FAS 121 requires entities to perform separate calculations for assets to be held and used to determine whether 

recognition of an impairment loss is required, and if so, to measure the impairment.  If the sum of expected future cash 

flows, undiscounted and without interest charges, is less than an asset's carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized; 

if the sum of the expected future cash flows is greater than an asset’s carrying value, an impairment loss can not be 

recognized.  Measurement of an impairment loss is based on the fair value of the asset.  US FAS 121 also generally requires 

long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles to be disposed of should be reported at the lower of the carrying value 

or fair value less cost to sell.  Based on an assessment by ASE of the potential impact of U.S. FAS 121, there is no 

impairment loss as of December 31, 2000 for ASE.

j. Stock dividends

Under ROC GAAP, stock dividends are recorded at par with a charge to retained earnings.  Under US GAAP, if the 

ratio of distribution is less than 25 percent of the same class of shares outstanding, the fair value of the shares issued 

should be charged to retained earnings.  The difference for 1999 stock dividends would be treated as an additional 

reduction to retained earnings and increase to Capital Surplus amounting to NT$9,580 million.

The following reconciles net income and shareholders' equity under ROC GAAP as reported in the consolidated financial 

statements to the approximate net income and shareholders’ equity amounts as determined under US GAAP, giving effect to 

adjustments for the differences listed above.
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Net income based on ROC GAAP

Adjustments:

a. Pension benefits ( cost )

b. Short- term investments

c. Bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors:

Accrued regular bonuses

Special stock bonuses

d. Gain from sale of treasury stock

e. Depreciation of building

f.  Excess of book value of building 

transferred between related parties

g. Capital gain from sale of long-term investment

h. Effects for US GAAP adjustments 

     on equity long -term investments

i. Effect of US GAAP adjustment on income tax

j. Effect of US GAAP adjustments on minority interest

Net decrease in net income

Net income based on US GAAP

Earnings per share

Basic

Diluted

Earnings per ADS

Basic

Diluted

Number of weighted average shares outstanding

Number of ADS

  1,603,961

   26,075

 ( 12,973 )

( 812,960 )

 ( 433,224 )

 ( 42,692 )

 ( 21,718 )

   432

7,433

( 21,966 )

4,538

1,944

 ( 1,305,111 )

   298,850

   

0.11

   0.08

   

0.56

   0.38

2,651,524,485

   530,304,897

  7,794,666

 ( 15,799 )

   12,584

 ( 1,089,135 )

 ( 577,500 )

 ( 1,388,523 )

 ( 30,731 )

  

 432 

 ( 5,180 )

 

( 154,218 )

   5,691

   89,014

 ( 3,153,365 )

   4,641,301

   

1.75

   1.71

   

8.75

   8.57

   

2,651,524,485

   530,304,897

  5,837,149

   5,635

   22,354 

 ( 929,348 )

 ( 929,901 )

   -

 ( 32,127 )

   

432 

   - 

 

( 51,825 )

   6,553

   1,074

 ( 1,907,153 )

   3,929,996

   

1.47

   1.42

   

7.34

   7.10

   

2,677,602,508

   535,520,502

  175,977

   170

   674 

 ( 28,018 )

 ( 28,034 )

   -

 ( 969 )

   

13 

   - 

 ( 1,562 )

   197

   32

 ( 57,497 )

   118,480

 

  

 0.04

   0.04

   

0.22

   0.21

   

2,677,602,508

   535,520,502

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

Net income
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Shareholders'  equity based on ROC GAAP

Adjustments:

a. Pension benefits

b. Restatement of short- term investments

c. Bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors

d. Treasury stocks

d1. reversal of unrealized loss

d2. classification of treasury stock

e. Effect of US GAAP 

adjustments on useful life

f. Excess of book value of building transferred 

between related parties

g. Restate carrying value of 

subsidiaries’ long-term investment

h. Effects of the above 

adjustments on equity investment

i. Effect of US GAAP 

adjustments on income tax

j. Effect on US GAAP 

adjustments on minority interest

Net decrease in equity

Approximate shareholders' equity based on US GAAP

Changes in shareholders' equity based on US GAAP

Balance, beginning of year

Convertible bonds converted into common shares

Capital increase in cash through the 

issuance of American Depositary Shares

Net income for the year

Adjustment for common shares issued 

as bonuses to employees, directors and supervisors

Translation adjustment for subsidiaries

Adjustment from changes in 

ownership percentage of investees

Unrealized loss on long-term

investment in shares of stock

Effect of change in exchange rate

Purchase of treasury stock

Sale of treasury stock

Capital gain from sale of treasury stock

Balance, end of year

  21,874,808

 ( 31,996 )

   -

 ( 34,300 )

   

   703,865

( 4,704,995 )

 

( 64,564 )

 

( 17,055 )

 

( 42,441 )

 

( 32,830 )

   

9,479

   

15,228

 ( 4,199,609 )

   17,675,199

   18,533,750

   -

   

-

   298,850

   

1,211,884

   97,854

   

55,605

   -

   -

 ( 2,598,416 )

   32,980

   42,692

   17,675,199

  30,057,036

 ( 47,794 )

   12,584

 ( 217,827 )

  

 -

( 2,922,561 )

 

( 95,296 )

 ( 16,623 )

 ( 47,621 )

 

( 187,048 )

   

15,170

   

19,667

 ( 3,487,349 )

   26,569,687

   17,675,199

   -

   

-

   4,641,301

   

1,448,808

 ( 173,957 )

 ( 108,046 )

  

 -

   -

   -

   1,782,434

   1,303,948

   26,569,687

  43,669,214

 ( 42,159 )

   34,938

 ( 113,600 )

   

487,752

( 2,919,411 )

 

( 127,423 )

 

( 16,191 )

 

( 47,621 )

 ( 238,873 )

   

21,723

   

20,741

 ( 2,940,124 )

   40,729,090

   26,569,687

   35,653

   

4,137,910

   3,929,996

   

1,811,607

   894,255

   

3,405,909

 ( 59,077 )

   3,150

   -

   -

   -

   40,729,090

  1,316,527

 ( 1,271 )

   1,053

 ( 3,425 )

   

14,705

( 88,014 )

 

( 3,841 )

 

( 488 )

 ( 1,436 )

 

( 7,201 )

   

655

   

625

 ( 88,638 )

   1,227,889

   801,015

   1,075

   

124,749

   118,480

   

54,616

   26,960

   

102,680

 

( 1,781 )

   95

   -

   -

   -

   1,227,889

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

Shareholders' equity
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A reconciliation of the significant balance sheet accounts to the approximate amounts as 

determined under US GAAP is as follows :

Short- term investments

As reported

US GAAP adjustments 

Restatement of investments to fair value

As adjusted

Long- term investments

As reported

US GAAP adjustments

Treasury stock

Equity investments

As adjusted

Buildings and improvement

As reported

US GAAP adjustments 

Effect of US GAAP adjustments on useful life

Excess of book value of building transferred between related parties

As adjusted

Other assets

As reported

US GAAP 

Effect of US GAAP adjustments on income tax

Classification of deferred income tax liabilities

As adjusted

Deferred income tax liabilities - net

As reported

US GAAP 

Effect of US GAAP adjustments on income tax

Classification of deferred income tax assets 

  

216,280

12,584

   228,864

   9,674,432

 ( 2,922,561 )

 ( 187,048 )

   6,564,823

   7,304,856

 ( 95,296 )

( 16,623 )

   7,192,937

952,757

15,170

 ( 6,590 )

   961,337

6,590

-

 ( 6,590 )

-

  

  

1,682,679

34,938 

   1,717,617

   10,712,199

 ( 2,429,131 )

 ( 238,837 )

   8,044,231

   9,390,206

 ( 127,423 )

 ( 16,191 )

   9,246,592

1,275,557

-

  -

1,275,557

   511,462

( 21,723 )

   -

489,739

  

  

50,729

1,053

   51,782

   322,948

 ( 73,233 )

 ( 7,200 )

   242,515

   283,093

 ( 3,841 )

 ( 488 )

   278,764

38,455

-

  -

   38,455

   15,419

( 655 )

   -

14,764

  

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

(Forward )
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Consolidated debits

As reported

US GAAP adjustments 

Restated carrying value of subsidiaries’ long-term investment

As adjusted

Current liabilities

As reported

US GAAP adjustments – bonuses to   and supervisors

As adjusted

Accrued pension cost

As reported

US GAAP adjustments – pension benefits

As adjusted

5,245,828

 ( 47,621 )

5,198,207

17,636,203

   217,827

17,854,030 

189,189

   42,691

231,880

4,999,546

 ( 47,621 )

4,951,925

25,873,359

   113,600

25,986,959 

248,425

   42,159

290,584 

150,725

 ( 1,436 )

149,289

780,024

   3,425

783,449

7,489

   1,271

8,760

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

(continue)

28. ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY US GAAP

ASE is required by SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 74, to disclose the impact recently issued accounting standards will 

have on its financial statements when adopted in a future period, as well as make certain disclosures about recently issued 

accounting standards.

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133 (“FAS 

133” ) , accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities.  SFAS No.133 has been amended by FAS No.138, issued 

in June 2000.

The adoption of FAS 133 is effective commencing January 1, 2001 and ASE will adopt FAS No.133, as amended, in its fiscal 

year ending December 31, 2001 and does not expect adoption to have a material impact on its financial position or results of 

operations.

a. Pension

Set forth below is pension information disclosed in accordance with US FAS 132:

Components of net periodic benefit cost

   Service cost

   Interest cost

   Expected return on plan assets

   Amortization of prior service cost

Net periodic benefit cost

  

59,531

   19,569

 ( 13,023 )

777

   66,854

  

81,240

   23,796

 ( 12,242 )

642

   93,436

  

120,528

   30,241

 ( 14,575 )

8 

   136,202

  

3,634

   912

 ( 440 )

-

   4,106

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

As a result of the adjustments presented above, the approximate amounts of total assets based on US GAAP are 

NT$74,082,790 and NT$105,516,899 ( US$3,181,094) as of December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively.
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Changes in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year

   Service cost

   Interest cost

   Actuarial gain

   Benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of year

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year

   Actual return on plan assets

   Employer Contribution

   Benefits paid

Funded Status

Unrecognized actuarial loss

Net amount recognized ( recognized as 

accrued pension cost )

  

286,215

   57,234

   18,604

   -

 ( 2,543 )

   359,510

   127,275

   11,153

   29,270

 ( 2,543 )

   165,155

   194,355

 ( 8,214 )

   

186,141

  

359,510

   79,410

   23,369

   3,586

 ( 201 )

   465,674

   165,155

   10,790

   32,545

 ( 201 )

   208,289

   257,385

 ( 16,549 )

   240,836

  

465,674

   120,528

   30,241

   34,025

 ( 436 )

   650,032

   208,289

   12,408

   91,476

 ( 436 )

   311,737

   338,295

 ( 45,795 )

   

292,500

   

14,039

   3,633

   912

   1,026

 ( 13 )

   19,597

   6,279

   374

   2,758

 ( 13 )

   9,398

   10,199

 ( 1,381 )

   

8,818

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

                                                                                       

Discount rate 6.5%

Rate of compensation increase 4.0%~5.5%

Expected return on plan assets 6.5%

Actuarial assumptions:

ASE has no other post- retirement or post-employment benefit plans.

b. Short - term investments

At December 31, 2000, certain investments carried at cost under ROC GAAP were restated under US FAS 115:

Short- term

investments

( Note 3 ) 216,280 228,864 12,584 1,682,679 1,717,617 34,938 50,729 51,782 1,053

Carrying
 Value 

Fair Value
Unrealized
Holding
 Gains 

Carrying
 Value 

Fair Value
Unrealized
Holding
 Gains 

Carrying
 Value 

Carrying
 Value 

Unrealized
Holding
 Gains 

NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ NT$ US$ US$ US$

1999 2000

Years Ended December 31

1998~2000
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c. Income taxes expense ( benefit )

Income tax currently payable

Deferred

Income tax on undistributed earnings generated in 1998

Adjustment of prior years' income taxes

   160,144

 ( 272,049 )

   -

 ( 43,410 )

 ( 155,315 )

    583,550

 ( 161,128 )

   44,539

 ( 13,109 )

   453,852

    1,080,704

 ( 158,691 )

   147,379

 ( 10,177 )

   1,059,215

   32,581

 ( 4,784 )

   4,443

 ( 307 )

   31,933

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

Reconciliation between the income tax calculated on pretax financial statement income based on the statutory tax rate and 

the income tax expense ( benefit ) which conforms to US GAAP is as follows :

The abovementioned taxes on pretax accounting income at the statutory rates for domestic and foreign entities are 

shown below:

Income tax at statutory rate

Add ( less ) tax effects of :

Permanent differences Tax - exempt income

- Tax holiday

- Gain from sale of securities

Unamortized expense for issuance of GDS

Bonus to employee and directors

Other

Tax credits

Utilized

Deferred

Provision for ( reversal of ) valuation allowance

Income taxes (10 % ) on undistributed 

earnings generated in 1998

Adjustment of prior year’s income tax

Income tax expense

 $ 491,610

 ( 508,822 )

 ( 38,935 )

 ( 4,770 )

   311,546

   8,734

 ( 138,923 )

 ( 650,317 )

   417,972

  

 -

 ( 43,410 )

 ( 155,315 )

 $ 2,406,503

( 1,163,516 )

 ( 653,493 )

   -

   416,659

   35,408

 ( 401,525 )

 ( 431,695 )

   214,081

   

44,539

 ( 13,109 )

   453,852

     $ 2,732,461

( 700,749 )

 ( 51,415 )

   -

   464,812

 ( 133,158 )

 ( 1,231,247 )

   155,081

 ( 313,772 )

   

147,379

 ( 10,177 )

   1,059,215

   $ 82,377

( 21,126 )

 ( 1,550 )

   -

   14,013

 ( 4,014 )

 ( 37,119 )

   4,675

 ( 9,459 )

   

4,443

 ( 307 )

   31,933 

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

Years Ended December 31

Domestic entities in ROC ( 25 % statutory rate )

Foreign entities

ASE Korea Inc. (30.8% statutory rate )

ISE Labs, Inc. (33 % statutory rate )

ASE Test Malaysia (30% statutory rate )

 $ 1,853,314

   55,770

   163,240

   281,714

  $ 2,354,038

     $ 2,064,193

   2,153

   439,169

   226,946

  $ 2,732,461

  $ 62,231

   65

   13,240

   6,842

  $ 82,378

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$
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d. Stock option plans

ASE Test has six stock option plans, the 1996 Option Plan ( “Pre- IPO Plan” ), the 1996 Executive Management Option 

Plan ( “1996 Plan” ), the 1997 Option Plan, the 1998 Option Plan, the 1999 Option Plan and the 2000 Option Plan.  

The Pre- IPO Plan provided for grants of option, which are currently exercisable, to ASE Test’s directors, officers, employees 

and independent consultants to purchase 1,500,000 shares at US$2.0625 ( NT$68.41) per share.  Up to 10,000,000 shares, 

3,200,000 shares, 1,600,000 shares, 2,000,000 shares and 12,000,000 shares have been reserved for issuance under 

the 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 Option Plans, respectively.

The 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 Option Plans granted the following stock options to purchase ASE Test’s ordinary 

shares, which are exercisable based on a vesting schedule over a period of five years until the expiration of options, to 

directors, officers, key employees and independent consultants.

If any granted shares are forfeited, the shares may be granted again, to the extent of any such forfeiture.

The exercise price of each option was equal to the stock’s market price on the date of grant and all options will expire after 

five years, except for options granted under the 1999 Option Plan, which will expire after ten years.

FAS 123, “Stock - Based Compensation” ( “FAS 123”) effective in 1996, establishes accounting and disclosure requirements 

using a fair value - based method of accounting for stock - based employee compensation plans.  Under FAS 123, ASE Test 

has elected to continue using the intrinsic value-based method and provide pro forma disclosures of net income and 

earnings per share as if the fair value accounting provisions of this statements had been adopted.

NT$US$

1996 Option Plan 

I R&F 2

II DIR/R&F

III R&F 3

IV R&F 4

V C961

VI C962

VII R&F 5

VIII C963

1997 Option Plan 

I P971

II C971

III C972

IV P972

V C973

1998 Option Plan 

I P981

II P982

III C981

1999 Option Plan

I P991 and P992

II C991 and P994

2000 Option Plan

Stock Option Plans 

   40,000

   7,750,000

   12,000

   2,010,000

   163,200

   45,800

   187,500

   34,900

 

   2,720,000

   16,000

   16,600

   480,000

   16,100

   1,269,680

   325,000

   9,000

   1,750,000

   352,000

None    

 

100

116

166

181

464

446

663

829

317

464

446

663

829

365

663

829

663

829

Not applicable

Number of Shares Granted
 

$ 3

   3.5

   5

   5.46875

 14

 13.4375

 20

 25

   9.5625

 14

 13.4375

 20

 25

 11

 20

 25

 20

 25

      Not applicable 

 Exercise Price

0.7

0.4

1.0

1.2

1.9

2.8

3.6

4.3

1.5

1.9

2.8

3.6

4.3

2.7

3.6

4.3

8.6

9.3

None

Weight Average 
Remaining Life as of 

December 31, 2000 ( Years ) 
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ASE has computed for pro forma disclosure purposes the fair value of each option grant, as defined by FAS 123, using the 

Black - Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions:

For purposes of pro forma disclosure, the estimated fair value of the options are amortized to expense over the option rights 

vesting periods.  Had ASE Test recorded compensation costs based on the estimated grant date fair value, as defined by FAS 

123, ASE’s net income under US GAAP would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts below.

e. According to FAS 130, the statement of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 
1999 and 2000 are present below:

f. Consolidation

The 1999 net revenues, cost of revenues and operating expense of ISE Labs before the date of acquisition in the 

amounts of NT$736,765 ( US$22,212 ) NT$475,250 ( US$14,328 ) and NT$117,880 ( US$3,554 ), respectively, were 

consolidated in the 1999 consolidated financial statements.  The net revenues for the pre-acquisition period only represented 

2% of the ASE’s consolidated net revenues in 1999 and such presentation has no impact on the 1999 consolidated net 

income and shareholders’ equity under US GAAP.  If the results of ISE Labs were consolidated from the date of acquisition, 

the net revenues, gross profit and income from operation of 1999 consolidated statement of income will be NT$31,872,796, 

NT$8,388,480 and NT$4,704,924.

Risk free interest rate

Expected dividend yield

Expected lives

Volatility

5.41%

0 %

1.5 years

54.64 %

6.61%

0 %

3.4-4 years

54.64 %

1996 Plan

4.29-6.61%

0 %

3.4-3.8 years

54.64 %

1997 Plan

4.56-6.61%

0 %

3.4-3.8 years

55.53- 82.08 %

1998 Plan

6.01-6.75%

0 %

5 years

55.53 %

1999 PlanPre- IPO Plan

Net income based on US GAAP

Pro forma net income 

Pro forma EPS - Basic

- Diluted

    298,850

   109,497

   0.06

   0.04

     4,641,301

   4,479,803

   2.26

   2.21

     3,929,996

   3,682,196

   1.38

   1.33

     118,480

   111,010

   0.04

   0.04

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

Net income based on US GAAP

Translation adjustment on

subsidiaries - net of income tax 

expense of NT$24,463 in 1998 and 

income tax benefit of NT$43,489 in 

1999 and income tax expense of 

NT$223,564 in 2000

Comprehensive Income

      298,850

   

73,391

   372,241

      4,641,301

 

( 130,468 )

   4,510,833

       3,929,996

  

 670,691

   4,600,687

      118,480

   

20,220

   138,700

1998

NT$

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

91



g. US GAAP cash flow information

The following represents the major caption of cash flow under US GAAP pursuant to SFAS No. 95:

The significant reclassifications for US GAAP cash flow statement pertain to the following:

1) the effect of exchange rate changes on cash is shown in the reconciliation of the beginning balance and ending balance 

of cash ( as opposed to operating activities under ROC GAAP )

2) compensation to directors and supervisors and bonuses to employees is shown in the operating activity under US GAAP 

( as opposed to financing activities under ROC GAAP )

3) proceeds from sales of treasury stock and purchases of treasury stock are shown in the financing activities under US GAAP 

( as opposed to investing activities under ROC GAAP ). 

 

Cash flows

   Net cash provided by operating activities

   Net cash used in investing activities

   Net cash provided by financing activities

   Net increase in cash

   Cash, beginning of year

   Effect of exchange rate changes in cash

   6,988,434

 (  14,953,647 )

   11,768,774

   3,803,561

   8,173,901

 (  168,350 )

   11,809,112

      17,491,335

 (  33,550,389 )

   17,734,240

   1,675,186

   11,809,112

   682,197

   14,166,495

   527,324

 (  1,011,468 )

   534,647

   50,503

   356,018

   20,567

   427,088

1999

NT$ NT$

2000

US$

Years Ended December 31

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

2000

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for sales allowances

Allowance for obsolescence

1999

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for sales allowances

Allowance for obsolescence

1998

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for sales allowances

Allowance for obsolescence

   

NT$           -

 -

   -

 -

-

   -

1,345

-

   -

   

NT$ 148,834

6,624

   115,928

109,263

-

   50,566

2,944

40,500

   106,708

   

NT$ 187,162

47,092

   176,205

84,708

53,000

   199,018

80,419

12,500

   203,276

      

( NT$ 21,753 )

( 15,040 )

 ( 137,072 )

( 6,809 )

 ( 5,908 )

 ( 73,379 )

 -

-

 (  110,966 )

   

NT$ 314,243

38,676

   155,061

187,162

47,092

   176,205

84,708

53,000

   199,018

Description
Balance at
beginning

of year
Deductions Balance at

end of year
(1)

Charged to
costs and
expenses

(2)
Charged to

other
accounts

Additions
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